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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIAT 1\!15,
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson 1 'I_]P]- 20 an10:47 DRS

Concord, NH 9330' -3834 DIVISION OF PLANNING
, Telephone: (603) 271-2155
CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU Fax: (603) 271-2615 DIVISION OF ENERGY
GOVERNOR ) www.nh.gov/osi

September 9, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Office of Strategic initiatives (OSI) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc., (VC #177195), Berlin, NH, in the amount of $4,516,446.00 for the Fuel
Assistance Program effective October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2021, upon approval of Governor and
Executive Council. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2021 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

Office of Stratesic Initiatives. Fuel Assistance FY 2021
01-02-02-024010-77050000
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $4,516,446.00

2) Further request authorization to advance Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. $45,982.00 from the
above-rcferenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action Agencies (CAA)
in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and-client service capabilities, the
synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAS’ implementation of several other federal
assistance programs. and the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver FAP services. OS] proposes to
continue to subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local leve! for
more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the OSI FAP Administrator in the implementation of the

program.

FAP is a statewide program, funded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)
Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified New Hampshire families,
including those who are elderly or disabled. Program funds are targeted to low income households with high
energy burdens. The current maximum income leve! is 60% of the State Median Income (SMI), which is
$69.686.00 for a family of four. The average FAP benefit during the last program year was $890.00.

The LIHEAP program operates on an October 1, 2020 to September 30, 2021 program year, but at this time
Congress has not finalized appropriations for the Federat fiscal year 2021, Therefore, the contract amount for
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His Execlency, Governor Christapher F. Sununu
and the Honerable Council

Scprember 9, 2020
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cach of the Community Action Agencies is based upon OSI’s best estimate of anticipated federal funding,
including carryover funds from the prior program year. No funds will be obligated under this contract unless
federal monies are available to be expended. The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAA to operate the
program between monthly reimbursements from the State.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support
this program. i

Respectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine
Director

JC/EPS

Enclosures

G&C 091253/2020



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreementandall of its attachments shallbeceme public upon submission to Governorand
Executive Council forapproval Any mformation thatis private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identificd to theageney and agreed to in wriling prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractorhereby mutuelly agree as follows:

GENERAL: PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Office of Strategic Initiatives 107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

1.3 ContractorNeme 1.4 Contracior Address

Tn-County Community Action Program, inc. 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570

1.5 ContractorPhone 1.6 AccountNumber 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 01-02-02-0240§0-77050000- | September30,2021 $4,516,446.00

(603) 752-7001 074-500587 02E21A

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 Statc Agency Telephone Number

Eileen Smiglowski, Fuel Assistance Program Administrator (603)271-2155

1.1} Contmctor&gnatum 1.12 Name and Tillc.ofCOn\‘mctorSig'latory

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

Date: C«“f”m

1.13 Sta gencyS 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory .
M@ Datﬁ/? %) dowca{ CL\{CQ\\\ACIO;VQ(:LQO‘

1.15 Affproval by the NH. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approvalby the Attomey Geperal (Form, Substanceand Excculnon) (if applipable)

8112520

1.17" Approval by the Governor and Exccutive Council (if applicable)

Gé&C ltcm number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acling through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State™), engages contractor identified in  block 1.3
("Contractor”)to petform, and the Contractorshall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and mote particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference (“*Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Govermor and
Exceutive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and allobligations of the partics hereunder, she ll
become effective on the date the Govemnor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unkss po such approvalisrequired, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in biock 1.13 {'Effective Date™),

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contmctorpricr to
the Effective Date shall be performed 2t the sole risk of the
Contractor,and in the event that this Agreement does not become
¢ffective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
inchuding without limitation, any obligatien to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrecment to the
contrary, all obligations of the Statc hercunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any stale or fedeml legislstive or executive
action that reduces, climinates or otherwise modifics the
approprigtion or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the Statc be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. Inthe
event of a reduction or termination of approprated funds, the
State shail have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right 10 reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The Stateshall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 i the
event fundsin that Accountarcreduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the Statc of the contract price shall be the
only and thc complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
cxpenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractorin the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor (or the Services. The State shall
haveno liability to the Contractorotherthan the contract price.
5.3 The Statc reserves the right to offset from any amounts
othcrwisc payable to the Contraciorunderthis Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by NJH. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any otherprovision of law,

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in ne
cventshall the totalof all payments authorized, or actually made
bereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forthin block 1.8,

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services. the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, siate, county or municipal
authoritics which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
cmployment opportunity laws. Inaddition, if this Agreement is
funded i any part by monies of the United States, the Contracior
shall comply with all federalexecutive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines asthe
State or the United States issuc to implement these regulations,
The Contractorshall 2lso comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws, )

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminatc against cmployees or applicants far employment
becausc of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap. sexual
oricntation, or national origin and will take affrmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees 1o permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purposc of ascertaining comphance with all rules, regulations
and orders, apd the covenants, icrms and condilions of this

Agreement,

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractorshaliat its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractorwarrantsthat
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise suthorized to do so under all applicable laws,

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date m block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom il is engaged in a combined cffort to
perform the Services to hire, any person whois a State employee
or official, who is matcrally involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement,  This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State’s represcntative. Inthecvent ofany
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shall be fmal for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any onc or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shallconstitutc an eventof default hereunder (“Event
of Default'):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure 10 submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any athercovenant, tem or condition of
this Agrcement. .

8.2 Upon the occumrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any onc, or more, orall, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
8 greater or legser specification of time., thirty (30} days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminatethis Agreement, effective iwo (2) daysafter giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor = written notice specifying the Event of
Defauk and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accruc to the Contractor during the
period {rom the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall neverbe paid to the Contracter;

8.2.3 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Eventof
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractorany damages the State suffers by reason off
sny Event of Default; and/or

8.2 4 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Eventof
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3, No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hercof afier
any BEventof Default shall be decmed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No cxpress failure to enforce any Event of Default shalk
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor,

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discrction, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30} days written notice to the Contractor that
the Statc is exercising its option 1o terminate the Agreement.

92 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any rcason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shail, at the State’s discretion, decliver to the
Contracting Officer. not laterthan fifteen (1 5)daysa fierthe date
of termination, & report (“Termination Repon™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamcd, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Fine[Reportdescribed in the attached
EXHIBITB. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall within 15 daysof notice of early termination, develop and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agrecement, the word “data” shallmean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, gmaphic
Tepresentations, computer programs, computerprintouts, notes,
Jetters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which hasbeen received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall bereturned to the Statc upon demand orupon termination
of this Agreement for any rcason,

103 Confidentiality of data shalibe govemed by N.H. RSA
chapter9]-A or otherexisting law. Disclosure ofdata requires
prior writien approvalof the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agrcement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an ageént nor an
employee of the State. Ncither the Contractornor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any bencefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
mierest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and & writtcn consent of the State, For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control’ means (2a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction orseries of related tmnsactionsin
which & third party, logcther with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indircet owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar cquity intcrests, ot combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sak of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contmctor.

12.2 Nonc of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior writien notice and consentof the State.
The State is entitled 1o copies of all subcontracts end a ssignment
agreements and shall notbe bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is nota

party.

13, INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall mdemnify end hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
linbilities and casts for any personalinjury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, orotherclaims asserted a gaingt
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arisc out of) the acts or omission of the

Contractor Initials
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not hmited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shallnot
be liable for any costs ncurred by the Contractor a rising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstandinghe foregoing, nothing herein
contained shzllbe deemed to constitute a waiverofthe sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenanl in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement,

14, INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contraclor shall, at its sole expense, oblain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall requie any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and mamtain in force, the
following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability msurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject 1o subpamgmph 10.2 herein, in an amountnot less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy formsand endorsementsapproved foruse in the State
of Ncew Hampshire by the NH. Department of Insurance, and
issued by msurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall fumnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agrecment.
Contractorshallalso fumish to the Contracting Officer identificd
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of nsurance required underthis Agreement no
Ister than ten {10} days prior to the cxpiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s} of insurance and any
renewals thercof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants thatthe Contractoris in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of NH. RSA chapler281-A (“"Workers’
Compensation").

15.2 To the extentthe Contractoris subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or nsgsignee (o secure and maintamn,
paymeni of Workers" Compensation i connection with
activities which the person proposesto undertake pursuantto thi
Agreement. The Contractorshall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner descnbed m N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thercof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or beneft for
Contra¢tor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable Statc of New Hampshie
Workers' Compensation laws in  connection with  the
performance of the Services under this Agreement,
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16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hercto 10 the other pany
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given atthetime
of mailing by certificd mail, postage propaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the nddresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, hercin,

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may beamended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
pattics hercto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Exccutive Council of
the State of New Hampshireunless no such approval is required
under the circum stances pursusnt to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Ncw Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefitof the partics and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the partics to cxpress their mutualintent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied againstor in favorof any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19, CONFLICTING TERMS. In thc cvent of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/orattachments end amendment thercof, the terms of the
P-37 (asmodified in EXHIBIT A) shall control

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panies hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to conferany such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughoutthe Agreement are
for reference purposcs only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, constnaction or meaningof the provisions of this
Agreement,

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. Inthccventany of the provisions of this
Agrcement arc hekd by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or fedeml law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed n a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, “constitutes the enlire agrecment and
understanding belween the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreemenis and understandings with respect 1o the subject ma tter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A
SPECIAL PROVISIONS
I. Subparagraph 1.16 of the General Provisions, shal] not apply to this agreement.

2. On or before the date set'forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor shall
deliver to the State an independent audit of thie Contractor's entire-agency by a qualified
independent auditor in good standing with the staté and federal government.

3. This audit shall be conducted in accordance with the audit requirements of Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 2 CFR 200, Subpart F- Audit Requirements.
The Fuél Assistance Program shall be considered a “major program™ for purposes of this audit.

4. This audit repoit shall include a schedute of revenues.and. expenditures by contract or grant
number of all expenditures.during the Contractor’s fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding procéss to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

5. The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years’ questioned costs along with-an Agency
responsc to the current status of the prior years’ questioned costs.. Copies of all OMB letters:
written as.a result.of audits shall be forwarded to OS1. The audit shall be forwarded to OSI
within one.month of the time of receipt by the Agency, acconipanied by anh.action-plan for each
firiding or questioned cost.

6. Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: “The form, subject matter,
contént, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be |dcnt1cal to those of any Final
Report described in Exhibit A"

7. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E — Cost Principles.

8. Program and-financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency for 3
(three) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR 200.333 -
Reterition Requirements.for Records and until all audit findings have been resolved.

9. Inaccordance with Public: Law'103-333, the “Departments of Labor, Health and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1995”, the following
provisions are applicable to this grant award:

-a) Section 507: “Purchase of-American -Made: Equipment-and Products - It is the  sense
of the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable; all equipment-and products
;purchased with funds made available in this Act should be American-made.”

b) Section 508: “ When i ISsuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
~ solicitations.and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in
part with federal money, all states receiving federal funds, including but not limited to
state and local governments and recipients of federal research granits, shall clearly state

TCCA LIHEAP2) . Exhibits A, B&C .
CFDA#93.568 ‘Contraclor Initials _\% .
Date _ﬂ_‘i\’ao
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(1) the percentage of the total costs of the program or project which will be financed
with federal money, (2) the.dollar arhount of federal funds for the-project or program,
and (3) the percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program that
will be financed by non-governmental sources.”

10. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT:. All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the State within thirty (30) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).,

11. ADVANCES. Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance. Prograrn
expenditures. Advance program funds are to be used only for. Fuel Assistance Program vendor
payments.. All Fuel Assistance Program payments, including: Advance program payments, must
be transferred from. the’Community Action Agency’s general operating account into a specific
Fuel Assistarice Program account within 48 hours after being received electronically from the
State. CAAs must submit the bank account number-of the designated bank account for the
advance-funds to OSI prior to.the electronic submission.of the funds to the CAA. Unspent
Advance program funds must remain in the FAP dedicated account at all times and cannot be
comingled with any other CAA funds. CAAs are required to submit a complete electronic copy of
the FAP-dedicated bank account statement to OSI on a monthly basis.

TCCa LIHEAP2Y Exhibits A, B & C
CFDAR93.568 Cantractor Initials gl
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EXHIBIT B
SCOPE OF SERVICES

The‘Conlractor.ag'rﬁe_cs to provide Fuel Assistance Program services to'qua]i'ﬁed\ low intomie
individuals; and agrees to perform all such seivices and other work necessary. to operate .t'hc-Prograrn in
accordance with the requirements-of this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel
Assistance Program Procedures Manual, Information Memoranda, and sther guidance as determined
by OSI.

Fuel Assistance Program (EAP) services will be defined to include the following categories:
1. Qutreach, eligibility, determination and certification of FAP applicants.,
2. Payments directly to energy vendors:

a. Reimbursement -for'g_qod_s and services delivered

b. Lines.of credit

¢. Budget plan payments

3. Payments directly_lo-landl.ords via vouchers for renters who pay (heir-energy costs as undefined
portions of their rent.

4. Payincrits directly io clients only when deemed appropriate and necessaryas defined in the Fuel
Assistance Procedures Manual.

5. Emergency.Assistance'in the form of reimbursements for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above,

TCCA LIHEAP2| ExhibisA,B&C | |
CFDA#93.568 Contractor tnivials _ ]
Date Y 30
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EXHIBITC

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration.of the satisfactory performance of the services.as determined by the State, the State
‘agrees to pay over‘to the Contractor the sum-of $4,516,446.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the
"Grant™).

Upon the, State’s receipt of the.2021 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from the US
Departinent of Health and Human Services, the.following funds will be authorized:

$367,859.00 for administration costs, of which $45,982.00 will be issued as a cash advance;
$3,904,552.00 for program costs;
$244,035.00 for Assurance 16.

The dates for this.contract are October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2021.

Approval to obligate (Exhibit 1) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the Office of
Strategic Initiatives to the Contractor-as the Federal funds become available. Drawdowns from the
balance of funds will be made to the Contractor: only after writtén documeritation of cash.need is
submitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in accordance with procedures established

by the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures Manual.

CFDA Titte: Low Income Home Eneigy Assistance Program.
CFDA No: 93.568

Award Name: Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
Federal Agency: Health & Human Services

Administration. for Childien and Families
Office of Community Services

TCCA LIHEAP2} Exhibits A, B &C
CEDA#93.568 Contractor initialg’ - .
Date 90
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Wortkplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 etseq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Certiftcation:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVEI - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

USDEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACT ORS
USDEPARTMENT OF LABOR
USDEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Actof 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D;41 U.S.C.701 etseq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part [I of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register {pages 21681-21691), and require
cerlification by grantees (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards the grant. Falsc certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form
should send it to:

Director, New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives,
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall, Concord, NH 03301

(A} The grantee certifies that it will or wili continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employecs that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, .
dispensing, possession of or usc of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
[¢3)] the grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and cmployee assistance programs; and
4 the peneltics that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in
the workplace. -

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be cengaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) abide by the terms of the statement; and
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont’d
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US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

(¢}

(0

(8

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ~ CONTRACTOQORS
USDEPARTMENT OF LABOR
USDEPARTMENT OF ENERGY |
(2) notify the employcr in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a eriminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such[lconviction.

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days afler recciving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendardays of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2}, with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation |
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d). (), and (£).

(B)  The grantce may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
conncction with the specific grant.”

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check [ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

T October 1, 2020 to September30, 2021
Contractdr Name Period covered by this Centification

A\ : ‘ otwe O\ ev

Name and Titlc of Authorized Contractor Representative

\ | q{&la0
Confractor Re ntattve Signaturg Date
P37 Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.8.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1,11 and 1.12 of the Genenal |
Provisions, execute the following Certification;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

USDEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
USDEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE — CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
USDEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicatc appliceble program covered):
LIHEAP

Contract Period: October 1, 2020 to September 3, 2021

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

{1 No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undermsigned, to any
person for influcncing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer oremployee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in conncction
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
fedcral contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantce or sub-
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, oran employee of a member of Congréss in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbyin g",
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of faet upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
enalty of not Jess than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

' Cmed Execsnve O

cpresentative Signature Contractor’s Representative Title

o q)ql3c

Confractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrecs to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Exccutive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debamment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agreesto have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in cormection
with the NH Office of Strategic Initiatives’ determination whether to enter into this transaction. However,
failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such
person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when OSI
determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the federal
government, OS] may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OSI agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroncous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “*suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transaction,”

~ “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and *voluntarily excluded,”
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See theattached definitions.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lowertier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by OSL. '

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions,” provided by OSI, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, incligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, uniess it knows that the certification is erroncous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required t,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaclion knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to o ther remedies
available to the fedem! government, OSI may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont’d

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(n The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for decbamment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency,

®) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public {federal, state or local)
transaction or a contract undera public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
{fcderal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenscs cnumerated in paragraph (I} (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, state or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certificaton,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regard'mé Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Yoluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions
(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

() where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (centract).

The prospective lower Lier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this

clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions,” without medification in alt lower tier-covered transactions and in ali solicitations for

Cineét Exechve. OFGgor

ochprwen jve Signature Contractor’s Representative Title

ﬁmimbt&mmm finan Progmm, e, AR IS
Contractor Name v Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE H
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMFPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrecs to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilitics Act of 1990.

OnekExe vt O\

rRepresentative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

- 4 Prosam, iNC, ‘?/ ‘7190

Conttactor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBITH

CERTIFICATION
Public Law 103-227,Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance with Part C of Public Law 103-227, the “Pro-Children Act of 1994”, smoking may not be permitted
in any portion of any indoor facility owned or regularly used for the provision of health, day care, education, or
library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by federal programs either directly or
through state or local governments. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan
guarantees, and contracts. The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solety by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions or facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment.

The above language must be included in any subawards that contain provisions for children's services and that all
sub-grantces shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law may result in
the imposition of a ¢civil monectary penalty of up to $1,000 per day.

\ p _ QeEExectwe Dfycoc

Contra(gf Representative Signature " Contiactor's Representative Title

T ; ¢ q14[s0
Contractor Name Date
P37 Exhibits D thru H
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FAP Approval to Obligate EXAMPLE ONLY Exhibit 1
APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE
FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
STATE
First 7/1/2019 Wood and SEAS Only ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
{CONTRACTED BUDGET §38,220.00 5,646,370.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 §,546,372.60
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 1,165,551.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 538,220.00 4,480,819.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 5,380,821.60
BMCA
First 7/1/2019 _ ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 95,663.00 1,003,586.00 1,000.00 69,860.00 1,170,209.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00
PREVIQUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 95,663.00 796,474.00 1,000.00 69,860.00 963,087.00
SNHS
First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 163,777.00 1,718,152.00 1,000.00 84,220.00 1,967,149.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0,00 354,578.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 163,777.00 1,363,574.00 1,000.00 84,220.00 1,612,571.00
SCS
First 7/1/2018 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 83,835.00 879,501.00 825.00 64,960.00 1,029,121.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 83,835.00 697,997.00 825.00 64,960.00 847,617.00
CAPSC
First 7/1/2018 ADMIN, FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 18 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 54,676.00 573,593.00 757.60 55,110.00 684,136.60 |
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 54,676.00 45%,220.00 757.80 55,110.00 565,763.60
TCCA
First 7/1/2018 ADMIN, FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 140,269.00 1,471,538.00 1,000.00 82,950.00 1,695,757.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00
PREVIQUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.60
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303,984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 203,984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 140,269.00 1,167,554.00 1,000.00 82,950.00 1,391,773.00

LIHEAP21
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparcncy Act (FFATA) requircs prime awardees of
individual federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirementsas of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 1 70 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Fundingagency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA programnumber for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9} Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executivesif:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually, and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA-required data by the end of the month plus 30 days in which
the award or award amendment is made. )

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees 1o have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshlre Officc of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Account ﬂnvnd Transparency Act.

vy
Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Tﬂ:[nwnhﬁ_ﬁmmmh\_ﬂr.hnﬂ_ﬁrﬁmn,_mc- 'ILTEYe)
(Contractor Name) (Date)
Contmctor Initials &é L:
Datc 22| 30
Page | of 2
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contractor identifiedin Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: O-:I- ?)q ?64%

2. In your business or organization’spreceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual grossrevenue in U.8. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, andfor cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, andfor cooperative agreements?

g NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here.

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to informationabout the compensation of the executives in your business
or organizationthrough periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.5.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here.
if the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the followlng :

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount: _____
‘Name: —_ Amount:
Name: . . .. . Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Contractor Initials

Datec 341G [ 30
Page2of 2
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

L, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY
ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to trensact business in
New Hampshirc on May 18, 1965. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have
bean received and is in good standing as far es this office is concerned.

Business [D: 63020
Certificate Number: 0004969574

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF,

T hereto set my hand end cause to be affixed
the Seal of the Statc of New Hampshire,
this 31st day of July A.D, 2020.

s

Willism M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF YOTES

(Corporate Authority)
I, Sandy Alonzo , Chair/Vice Chair/Secretary of Tri-County Community Action Program, inc.
(Namoe) (Corporation name)
(Hcrcmaﬂcr the “Corporation™), a_ ___New Hampshire_ corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the duly
(State)

clected and acting Clerk/Secretary of the Carporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such

books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on May 26™ 2020, such authority
(Date)

10 be in force and effect until September 30, 2021.
{Contract terminstion datc)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer
{Name) ‘ (Position)

Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer
{Name) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire
(State of incorporation)

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

\
IN WITNESS mEOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Chair/ Vice Chair/Secretary of the corporation this

9% day of September |, 2020

Chair/ V{ge Chair/Sec
STATE OF ___New Hampshire
COUNTY OF Coos

On this 9% day of Scptembcr 2020 , before me, ___ Christina Morin the undersigned Officer,

personally appeared ___Sandy Alonzo  who acknowledged her/himself to be the Board Chair  of
__Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. , & corporation and that she/he as such Board Chair  being
authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, 1 hereunto set my hand and official seal.

¢ U.Stlcc of thc P
Commission Expuatlon DatCM
CHRIBTINA MORIN; Notary pPuplic

1 New Hampsnire
Ny Oomgm Expires Doc ernber 19, 2023




TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
15F Y20 Boar jop: Resolution of th oratio
Authord 1
The Board of Directors of Tri County Community Action Program, Inc. (the “Corporation™)
takes the following action.
Resolved,

That the Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Jeanne L.
Robillard, Randall 8. Pilotte, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Regan L. Pride, Chief Operating
Officer (COO) are hereby authorized on behatf of this Corporation to enter into contracts with
the Federal Government, State of New Hampshire, and any other parties as deemed necessary
and 1o execute any and all docunents, agreements angd other instruments and amendments,
revisions or modifications thereto, as may be deem necessary, desirable or appropriate for the
corporation; this authorization being enforced and effective untit June 30%, 2021.

Atlest, the resolution adopted therein was duly authorized by the Board of Directors on May 26"‘.,!

2020
By;v%%;%@,@
Namé: Sandy Alofio

Title: Board Chair

Nafae: Anne Barber
Title: Interim Vice Chair




jcgaf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE o

08/25/2020

TH!S CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATICN ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORLZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: [f the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions of be sndorsad.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the termas and condltions of the pollcy, certaln policies may require an sndorsement. A statement on
this certificato doos not confer rights Lo the certificate holder In lou of such endorsement{s).

PRODUCER ﬁm Karon Shaughnossy
FIAI/Crosa Insuranos PHONE ~ (603) 669-3218 | (% ngj; _(603) 8454331
1100 E'm Street ADoaisy. kshoughnessy@crossagency.com
INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC §

Manchester NH 03101 INSURER 4 ToKio Marina Holdings, Inc.
INSURED msurer o OrBnite State Health Cara and Human Saervices Sali-

Tel-County Community Action Program, Inc NSURER G

30 Exchange Stroa! IHSURER D :

INSURER E

Boriin NH 03570 INSURER F :

COVERAQGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  20-21 Al Linzs REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANGE LJSTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAMS,

Eﬂ‘ TYPE OF INBURANCE P eren POLICY MUMDER st A PV LMmTS
| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE § 1,000,000
] cuamsamos (4] occun | PREMISES fEs ereuyencey | 3 100.000
| MED EXP {Any ond parson) 3 5.000
A ] PHPK2150055 07/0112020 | 07172021 [ persceo Aoy Ry | & 1-000.000
GENL AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER: OENERAL AGGREGATE 3 3.000.000
pocey %% [ ioe PRODUCTS - CoMPIOPAGA | 3 3:000,000
OTHER: — $
CMINEDB [Ny
AUTOMOBILE LWBILITY B pocitient) $ 1,000,000
z AHY AUTO BODLY NAURY (Par parsan) | §
OWHED SCHEDULED
A || AUTos onwy on PHPK2150050 07/01/2020 | 070172021 | BOOLY MIURY (Par soxidant) | 3
HRED NON-OWNED [FROPERTY DAMAGE '
|| aToBONLY AUTOS DMLY
Underinsured motorist s 1,000,000
[ Jumsamcauan [ ocem B , 20000%
A [5¢| xcessius CLAIMBMADE PHUBT28178 07/0172020 | 07R17202% [ pcomeomte s 2.000,000
ven | €] reresmon 3 _10-000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION > ﬁm [ 5
AND EMPLOYERS' LABILITY YN T
B [arrcermenner excioeor T | N ][MIA HCHS20200000241 (3a.) NH 02/0172020 | 200172021 | B EACHACCIDENT Ml
fltandstory n ¥ EL DISEASE - EA EmPLOYEE | § 1:000,000
dwacrte unca
DEBCPTION OF OPERATIONS beiaw EL DiSEASE -pouicY Larr | 3 1:000,000
Prof ) Uinbl Each Cccurrence $1,000,000
A oles Iy PHPK2150055 07/01/2020 | 07/01/2021 ]Aggrogatn $23,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS /| YEMICLES (ACORD 101, Addtonal Remarks Scheduls, may be sttached if mors space Is equited)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
NH Office of Sbrateglc inltiztives ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

107 Pleasant Strest
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Johnson Hall
Concord NH 03301 M

© 1985-2015 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 {(2018/03) The ACORD nama and logo are reglstered marks of ACORD
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Leone
McDonnell
& Roberts

To the Board of Directors of PROFERSIGNAL ASSOCLATIY
Tri-County” Communtty Action Program dnc! and Affiliate: \CERTIFIED PUBLICACCOUNTANTS,
Berlin, New Hampshire ‘WOLFEBORO. »:NORTH.CONWRY:
OOVER. » CONCORD:
STRATHAM:!

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

‘Report on.the-Financial Statements

Wa have audited the: eccompanymg consolidatad finandial staterhénts.of TH-County Communtty'
Action Program inc. dnd:Affiliate.(New Hampshire nonprofit organizalions); .which comprise the:
consolidated slatemeénts: of -fihancial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the. ‘related,
consolidated statements of cash flows. and functional @xpenses for the years: then ended.. the:
related .consolidated statement of aclivitigs for the year eénded. June- 30, 2019 and the related
notes’lo the consohdated financial-statements.

Managemeént's.Resporisibllity, for-the Financial*Statements
Management is responsibile:for the preparation and fair préseritation of thesé. consolidaled
financial statements in accordance: with accounting. principles. generally. accepted. in the Udited’
States of America; fhis includes: the des:gn implementation, and maintenance;of intermnal-control
relevant to the preparalion .and fair-presentation of consolidaled financial statements that are:
frée:from material misstatemenit, whether due'to fraud‘or error.

Auditors’ ReSponslbmly

Our responstbtllty isito éxpress an opimen ;on these-consolidated financial staléments based on
our audit. We conducted our glidit in accordance with. auditing standards generaﬂy accepted in.
the United States :of .America and the. standards appiicable to. fi nancial audits' contairied In

Govemment.Audiling.Standards; issued by the Complrolier General 6f the United Statés. Those

standards require ‘that we pian ‘and, perform’ (ha. audit 1o obtgiir reasonable. assurance :about’
whether the Congalidated firiancial statements arefree from material misstatement.

An audit involves: performing procedures o oblain audit evidence. ‘about ihe amionts..and
disclosures in the :consplidated financial statements. The. procedures iselecled depéiid .on thé
audutors judgement incliding the. dssessment. of the risks of material misstatement: ol {he
consolidated financial: stalernerits, -whether due (o “fraud or emor: In makmg those risk
assessmments, the.auditor cenmders internal .control relevant 10. the enlltys preparation.and fair
presentation’ of the eonsohdated financial statements in" order. 15; désign. audil procedureés that
‘are -appropfiate: in ‘the mrcumstances but not. for the purpose -6f expressing an- dpidion- on the
:effeciiveness of‘the entutys initerival contral. Accordifigly, we expréss: ng -such gpinion. An-audi
also: includés evaiuattng the: appropnateness of acgounting pollcles used end the
reasonableness of signifi icant. accounting estlmates made by management. ‘as. wéll as
evaluating the overall presantation:of the consolidated. fi nancual sstatemenils:,

We believe: that. thé dudit:evidence we:tiave obtained is sufficient-and .appropriate te. provide:a
basis for-aur-audit.opinion,



Oplinion

In our opinion, the -consolidaled financial statements. refeired to abiove présent fairfly, in -all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Commumty Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliale as of June ‘30, 2019 and 2018, and its. tonsoliddted cash flows for the years
then ended, and the.changes in its.nét assets for the year ended. June 30, 2019, in accordance
wilh accounhng principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

Woe_have previously ‘audiled Tri- -Gounly Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2018
consolidated finanéial latements, and we expressed an unmodified audit’ opinion en ‘ihose
consolidaled. financial statements in our report dated October 19, 2018. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented hérein :as of and 1&i the. year ended June 30,
2018, is consistént, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financtal statements
from which it has been derived.

Other Information _ ,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opiniofy &n the consolidated financial
slatemients as a whole. The accompanymg schedule: of expenditures. of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of-Federsl Regufafions (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administiative
Requirements, Cast' Pnnc.rples and Audit. Reguiremenits for Federal Awards, is presented for-
pufposes of .additional analysis -and is not a required parl of the conisolidated finarcial
stalemenis, Such information is' the. responsuballty of management and was derived from and
relates dnrectly 'to. the underlying accounting and other records used to prapare ihe ¢onsociidated
financial statements. The: information has been subjected to ifie auditing procedures applied. in
the audit .of the consolidated finantial stalements -and certain additional praocedures, Including
compering and’ reconciling such information dirgclly to the underlying -accounling end other
records ysed to prepare the consolidaled financiai statements or to the consolidated financial
statermients themséives, and othier additional procedures: in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepled in the: United States of America. In our opinion, the information is faidy
stated, in all material respects, in relation’to the consolidated financial stateménts:as-a whole.

Other Reporting Required by. Governme’nrA'udrﬁng Standards

in..accordance with Governmeént Audiling Standards, we have also issued our report dated
‘Oclober21,.2019, on our consideration of Tri- County ‘Communily Action Program, Inc.'s internal
contrel over financial reportlng and | on our tests of its'¢ompliarice wilh cértain provisions- of laws;,

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters, The pumpese of ihat. report is 0.
describe the scope:of our testing of infernal coritrol Gver finaiicial reporting and tomplidnée and
the: fesults of thal tesling, -afd not to provide an opinion, on the effecliveness of Tri- -County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s -internal control over fi nancaal feporting or 'oi' cGimpliance..
That report is. an integral part.of.dn audit performed in accordance with Government. Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County ‘Community Action Program, Inc.'s internat oonlrol over
financial reporting and compliance.

October.21; 2019 .
North Conway, New Hampshire.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE-30, 2012 AND 2018

ASSETS:

CURRENT ASSETS
‘Cash:@nd cash equivalehts
Restricted cash
‘Agcounts recefvabla
‘Property held, for sale
Pladges receivable
Inveniories
Prepaid expenses

Tota) cumant assets.
PROPERTY
Property and equipmant
Lass accumulated dépreciation
Propérty, net

'OTHER-ASSETS
Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES: AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
" Demand note payahle

Cufient porllon of-tong:term debt
Current porlion of capital lease-obligations
Accounts payable.
Acciued compensated absendes
Accruad salariés
Actrugd expenses
Refundsble advances:
Other liablillies

Total current liabilities
LONG TERM DEBT ) _
tong term debi, net of current portion,
Capltal iease obligalions, net of current portion
Total ligbilities
NET:ASSETS
Wilhout donor restrictions
WIth donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NEY-ASSETS

2019 2018
$ 1400750 'S 1,320,038
583,063 380,902
1,274,083 1,156,657
47,000 .
231,161 212,207
85,886 87.569
34037 25,640
3,656,880 3.192:013
12,086,152 12,812,689
(5,178,535} (5,203{324)
6,807,617 7,609,365
418,936 325863
$ 10983433  § 11,127.241
’$ - 5 518022
148,449 142,733
4,870 4,445
221,571 231,278
204,079 203,121
210,952 187,508
89,524 131,888
197,157 191,069
588,195 387,168
1,674:797 2,001,230,
5,227,835 5.373.937
3,355 . 8278
6,905,987 7,383,393
3,399,192 2,926,057
678,254 817,791
4,077:448 3,743,848:

}

$ 10,983,433 S 11,127:241

See Notes to'Consolidated Financial Statements
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"CONSOLIDATED'STATEMENT OF ACTVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2019

500’ Notos to Consblidatad Flrsncial Statamints

4

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFQRMATION
WIIhoul Donor With Donor’ 2019 ‘2018
REVENUES AND OTHER: SUPPORT: , o

Grani and contrads’ $ 14074008 8 401,108 § 14475114 $ 14,300,088

Program’ funding 1,187,509 - 1,187,500 1.259,007

Uthlty pRogranms 1,287,103 - 1287103 1,078,383

In-kind édntdbutions 477,187 . 477187 351,187

Contributions 230,088, . *230,088: 395,225

Fundraiting’ 36,303 - 35,300 59,536

Renu’ Inoomo 625,048 - 025,046 679,112

intoresi ncome ‘843 s .

(Loss) m!n on disposal of pmperny {32,692} - (32,892) 48 487

Loss 0n writa ‘Gown of property hewd for sale (255 452) (255,492) -

Othsr.ravanue 106,384 196,364 81,978

“Total revenuos £nd ‘other support 17,809,745 401,106 18,210,859 18,282,317
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 540,843 (540,843 .
Tolal revonuas, other suppornt, and . .
fat sssots relgased from restrctionia- 18,350,388 {130,537) 18,210,851 18,263,317
FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES:

‘Program-Services:: . L
Aguncy Fund 950,839 - ,850.639 22,701
Hesd Stan’ 2.451.208 . 2,451,206 2461910
Guandlinshilp' 787,241 - 782,241 " 760,009
Transportaion 016,080 - 016,089 79,729
Volimtsor 118,408 - 110,408 122,841
wmrom Devglopmoan 354,263 . 354'283 394,252
Akow and Othar Drugs - . 444 SBI
«Carroll Counly Denlsl 747,474 . 747, d?d 842,837
Support Centar, -301.850 - 391,850 218,472
Hompless 714,006 - ?14 068 . 57}[ 783
Energy and Cdmmunity Davelopmant '7.788,680 . 7,788,560 7,480,041
Eider 4,482,813 . 1,482,613 1,142,818
HousiAg Services 172,852 . 172852 "176,511

Tot#l progrérh sanvicas 16,835 151 . 15,535;'151. 16,102,093

Suppofting Actviles: L
Genenal'and sdminlstrative: 1,032,207 - 1.032.207 1,102,448
Fundroising 0 595 . 0,895 8,023

‘Yotat supiioding actMues 1;042.102 1,042,102 1,110,471

"Tolal functional exponses 17.357.25.?" - 17,677,253 17,413, 484

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 472,135 (139:537) 333508 549,853

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING.OF YEAR 2,826,057, 817,791 3,743,848 -2.893.995
(8

‘NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 3399192 8 B7B254 $ 4077448 § 2743848




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

R

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES,
Change in net assets
Adjusiments lo reconcile change in net-dssels (9
nel cash provided by operaling ectivilies:
Ooprecizlion
Loss (gain) on dispoaal of property
Loss on write downrof property held for sale
{Incrdnse) decreasd in dssets:
Accounts receivable
Pladges racoivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Restricted cash
Increpse (decrease) in liabilites:
Accounts, payabla.
Accruad compensated-absences
Accrued salares
-Accfund éxpenses
Refundabla advances
QOther llabifities

AN

NET'CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

‘CASH.FLOWS.FROM INVESTING. ACTIVITIES
Procdeds fram disposal of praperty
Purchases of property and equipman.

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS:FROM FINANCING ACTMVITIES

Net repaymant on demand note payable

‘Repayment of lorg-lamn débt: '

‘Repaymont of:capital loase obligations
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
NET INCREASE IN'CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:

Cash pékd during the year for:
Inlar_ast

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE .OF NONCASH INVESTING
‘AND FINANGING ACTIVITIES:
Proparty danalad

Soo Notes to Consolidated.Finoncla! Statemonts

5

2019 4018
$ 333508 § 849,853
447,669 483,483
32,892 {48,487}
255,492 :
1117:426) 170337
(18,954) (8,403}
' 1,683 (21.928)
(8.397) 18,705
1208,134) 235,922
{15.705) (284,471
, 958" {39,424}
23,444 3.314)
(42,364) 24,264
| 8,088 {5.479).
214,097 (258,143)
813871 1,092,152,
14,283 278,972
(95,588) (141,33;_)
(81,305) 137 837
(516,022) (90.412)
(140,286} (314,983)
{4;448) {4,058)
660.854) (408.451)
71,712 8233
1,329 038- 505,700
$ 1400750 S 1,320.038
'$ 152,078 S 182.514,
5 - 5 18,830




“CQNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONA

Gengpralk

Oifect Expensis " . , -
Payrol § 0 W9 8 g 5 5452305 8 598,457 3 - § 6058762
Payrofiaxes-and benefits 49:i5% D S T < ¥ 1 1 - 11570,5%4
‘Assistance (o, ctients: . '22,35¢ . §.786.314. . 5.785.314
Corsumatie:suppls 3400 . gy 845,305 11,438 - 857,741
Space cojti 'snd ranili | ez Vo 523,719 66:564 . 500,287
Depraciption expense. 189,85 889, 447 868, 3157 -
In-kind sxpanded . : . ATT8T Lo .
Cansuitanis and.contractors .20.400 HE. 222n8; 15028 .
Uiiites 188,297 Y 378,835 5708, .
Trovel 40 mestings .0 B4z 297807 20769 -
Other direct program casts 2.533 “03i 157,806, 9.225 9,605 176:848
Fiscal and adminksirative 18.817 ™ 103,947 94i740° . 197:487
Bulling and grounds maintenance 92,888 S84 179348 0 - A79.378
Inlcrasl 4xpense 17.585 152/965, k- LEH . 153938
Viicle fxpense 274 . 199,085! . - 199,965
tnsurance %671 216 89,010° 30,777 . 119,788
Kaintenance of equipment end renial 562 a 41,909 2,647 . $6.556
Fiied aes- 8,283 . 3BV a2 - 14,239
-

Téiat-Diryct Expersés 30,629 2.4 15,835,157 1,012,207 2.885 17877253
Iidirect Expenses .
Indirect costs ) 96.348 x 1,032,207 {i, 932200y .

Totd!, Direct-§ Indiract:axpansas § 1048887 3 2645y 5 17667358 5 - 3 0898 § 17877253

.Sen Nolss'to Consouut«t-Finlnd



IBLCOUNTY C QWMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. [NC, A

CONSOLIDATED'STATEMENT.OF FUNCTIONAL E)

Dirsci Expanses

Payvo_i

Pay:oll isxet and benefils
‘Adsistanca 1o clnts

Consumable supphies
‘Spaco’cotis and renlals
Dapractalion éxpense

In-kind expended

Consullsnis and convacion
Utlitias

Travel and meetings

Other direct program costs

Fiscta!l snd sdminisirative

Buliging and gradnds maintanance
intérest ezpense

Vehicl expense’

nsursnce

Malntgnance of equipmentand rantat
Fired fowe

Total Dircct Expanses

Indirect Expenses
indirsct cosls

Capliafized Expanaes
Lass.caphaiiation of svzats

Total Direct & Indirec! expensas

EQRTHE: YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201¢

. , General &

AcarevFynd  Heag Stee Tots! Adminiaiattes  Fandenising Tau!
S PSS S 12308, ¢ saupey § 670592 § 3 5884841
a3 330, 1,260.319 184,414 - 142473
L . 5536548 . 5,536,548
723 240.8;y 849,850 1219 561,089
2013 1944 578,542, 72388 R £50.927
60 453,483 . 463,483
12.500 251.188° - - -351,188
15.013 31582 13,862 331,504
135351 28890, 3580 330,248
1,093 273,787 8:470 . 288257
4, 192,849 28.234 8.023: 729,100
2 94540 108,289 . 200,908
62822 198,381 180 198,561
e 183,401 1.24) ‘184,642
a2 184,961 - - 184981
63634 154218 5085 159.400
° 1273 14,018 141,331
: 4Nz . 4312
1015074 *16,395:388 1.162.448 B0d. 17.505,837
26,950 4801, 1,107,448 {1:102:448] .
192.313) = (82313 . {92373
51000651 §- 279006, § j7405:4e1 3 -8 8.021 § 17413484

See Notes to Consotidated Flnancial !

T




NOTE 1.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019.AND 2018

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization and Piinciples-of Consolldation
The. consolidated financial statements inciude the accounts of Tri-County

Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerslone Housing North, Inc.

The two' organizations are consolidated because Tri-County: Community Action
Prograi, Inc. cantrols 100% of the voting power of Corrierstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. T#-Courity Community Action Program, Inc.¢ (the
Orgamzauon) is a New Hampshire non- prof I corporation that operates :a wide,
variety:of community.service programs which are furided -primarily-thiough grants or
contracts from various. federal, state, .and local agencies. Comerstone Housing
N6rth, Ing. (a New Harmipshire nonprofit corporation) was incorporated under the
laws of the State of New: Hampshure for the acquisition, construttion and operation

-of commupity-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Orgénization's prograins-consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides: central program managerient
support and .oversight to the Qrganization's' many individual programs.
This: includes: plannmg and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR .sefvices, legal and audit sefvices, IT support,
management support; financial support and central policy developmenl

Tn- County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Commumty Action Program, Inc., Board of Directors and its programs;
ensuring that programs comply With agreements made by the Board to.
funding sources and vendors.

Other: responsibililies include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Cemmunlly Services Block ‘Grant, .as well as
management of the. Qrganiization's raal estaté property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children..and
their families. ‘Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive. leaming environment thiough a variety of -activities as well as.
providing services, which include in addition to early Ieammg. health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,,
nutritiols meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, :such as' housing
stability, continued educafion, and financial stability..




Programs support and strengfhen parent-child relationships as their chiid's
primary educator.. Head Start staff work as partners with parents fo identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and.
developmént.

Tri County Cammunity Action Head Start serves 217 children in Carvoll,
Coo$ & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based classrooms
and 1 home-based option.

Guardlanship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
servicés for the vulnerable population of New Hampstire residents
(developmentally disabied, chronically mentally ifl; traumatic brain injury,
and the elderty suffering froim' Alzheimer's, dementia, and muiltiple medical’
issues) who need a. guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able,-or- suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves 414-
individuals. Additidnal services ‘include, conservatorship, representative
payee- shup fedéral fi ducsary services, benefit management services and
private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organizatior's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus rolites, door-to-door service by request; long distance
medical travel 1o medical faclities. outside our regilar sérviée :afea, and
special trips for the -elderly to go shopping -and ‘enjoy other adtivitiés that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's, fleet.of 17
wheelchair iactessible ‘vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as weil-as to' the general public.

Volithtéer

The Goos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVR) mairntains
a. minimum group of 394 voluntéers, ages 55 -and older, of ‘which 287
actively served dunng thié. last reporting period.. Thése velunteers share
their skills, life experiences, -and time with over 60 1664l fion- profit and
public. agencies: throughout Coos County that .depend on wvolunteer
assistarice to meet the needs of their conslituents. Our volunteers_donate
over 46,764:hours yearly.

Workforce Development. o .
The Qrganization. is assisting transitional and displaced workers::as they
prepare for new jobs, and also -assisting currently- employed workers 1o,
gain‘the.skills required for bétter jobs.




The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State.
Plan for- Workforce Developmenl, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce trairing programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide' temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours' per week of training in the areas of employméent
skills, computer skills, and business .experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Alcohol & Other Drugs {AOD)

Services. provided through the AQD program inciuded assisting the
alcoholic/addicted ‘person on the road to recovery, through three phasés:

Crisis Intervention, Sébrety. Maintenance, and Assessment and Referral to
appropriate treatment facilitios.

The. Residential Treatment Programs (Frlendshl'p House) provided
chemically dependent individuals with the fundamental tools. of récovery,
in¢luding .educational classes; group and individual counsellng ‘work. and
recreational therapy, and -atteddlance at inchouse and community-based
alcoholics anonymous: and narcolics ahonymous maetifigs. The AQD
_program also -offeredassistance with its impaired drivér programs.

Effective Octabeér 1,:2017, the Organization is no longer responsible for the
Alcohol & Other Drugs (AOD) program. The grants for the program were
transferred to North Country Health Consartium (NCHC) ds.they-took: over the
prograim; The Friendship: House was sold to Affordable Housing Educatign and
Developrnent (AHEAD).

Carroll County.Dental

The Tamworth Dental Center (the Center), offers high quality oral health;
care to children with NH Medicaid coverage. The QOrganization also serves.
unmsured ‘afd underinsured children and adults using a sliding fee scale
that offers - income-based discourits for care. The Center accepts most
common dental ‘insurances for those who have commercial dental
insurance coverage. A school- based project of the Dental Ceriter, -School
Smiles; offers oral health education, screening, treatment aid refsrrals for
treatent to-over 1,000 children in 9 schools in the vicinity of the Center.

Support Center
The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides difect sérvice

and sheltef to victims and survivors of domastic. and ‘sexual vlolence and
stalking A Northém Grafton County. Support Center services are.
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They ‘include: crisis:
intervention; supportive :counseling; court, hospital and pohcy advocacy
and accompaniment; ‘emergency. shelter suppoft groups; comimuriity
education and outreach; vielence prevention programs for studénts;
lnformat:on referrals and assisiance accessing other community
resources.
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Homeless

‘Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives te ‘prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the alfeady homeless in securing safe; affordable. housing. The
Organization provides temporary-shelter space for horrieless clients.

The Organization -als_o provides some housing. rehabilifation servicés to
help preserve.older housging stock.

Energy Assistance and Qutreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuet and eiéclric assistarice through
direct pay to vendors or-a discounton the. client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participarits access. to energy -assistance programs: :and
other .emergency 'sémices. The. offices provide. information to the
Organization's. clients about other prograrms offéred, as well as other
programs available through other organizations-in the commiunity:

Low-Income Weatherizatioh

The NH ‘weatherizalion program helps low-income families; -elderly;
disabied, small children and individuals. lower their home energy costs;
in¢réase their health; safety; and comfort; and improve: the quality- of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizifg
energy cost saving, health and saféty and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program. also créates local NH jobs.

Elder

The C Orgamzatuons eldér program. provides: senior meals'in 15 commumty'
dining sites, home delivéied méils (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, .and ‘sedior futrtionn  édugation and ‘related
programming. The Coos County Servicelink Aging & Disability Resource
Ceriter -assists with person-centered counseling, Medicaré couriseling,
Medicaid assistance, long:téni care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Houslng.Services
Comerstone Housing North, Inc. is subject to a Project Rental Assistance -

Contract (PRAC) with the Unlted States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. (HUD), ard a. sighificant portion of their rental income, is
received from HUD.

The Organizatioh includes ‘@ 12-unit apariment complex in Berin, New
Hampshlre for, the elderiy Thiig operates under Section 202 of the National
Housmg Act ‘and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.
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The Organization has a Section 202 Capital Advance, Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Managerhent and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Cods of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, - Cost Principles and Audit
Requireinents for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a imajor program.

Method of accounting
The consolidated financial .statements of Tri-County Community Action Program
inc. have been prepared utmzmg the accrual basns of- accountung m accordance with

------

promuigated by the Financial Accounling Standards Board (FASB) Accountlng
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
ahd expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date, of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis.of presentation .

The financial statements of the- Organlzafron have been' prepared in..accordance
with U.S. generally accepted-accounting principles {US. GAAP), which require’ the
Organization to réport information regardmg its fii nancial position and activities
according to the following- net asset classifications:

Net assets without.donor restrictions include net assets that.are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be, expended -for any purpose in
performing the primary objéctivés of the Organization. These. net assets may
be used at the discietion of the. Organizatioi's management .and board of
direclors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors.. Some donor restriclions -are temporary- in
nature; those reslrictions will be met by «actions of the. Organization or by
passage of time, Other donor restrictions. are’ perpetual in naturé, whereby the:
donor has stlpulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with dorior réstrictions: of $678,254 and $817,791
at June-30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. See Note 13,

.Corntributions

Contributions received &ré recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
.assets with donor restrictions, dependmg on the existencé and/or nature: of any
donor:imposed restrictions, Support that ‘is: réstricted is Teported as an increase. in
net assets without donor restrictions if the: restriction expires in‘the réporting period
in ‘which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted’ contributions afe. -
reported :as net assets with donor restrictions. depending on the nature of the-
restriction. 'When a restriction éxpires (that is, when a: stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions, and reported in the statément of
activities as net assets reléased from restrictions.
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Accounts Recelvable . ‘ .
Accoun‘ts receivabte are slated at the -amount management expects to coliect from

federal and state awardlng agencues and are based on renmbursement for
expenditures made. under specific grants of contracls. A portion of the accounts
receivable. balance represents amourits due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program, Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion .using the.
direct write:off method; this is rot considered a departure from accounting principles
generally :accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write
method approximate those of the aliowance meéthod. Management:sélects.accounts
to be written off :afler analyzing past payment history, the age of thé accounts
reéceivible, and collection rates for receivables with simitar characteristics, such =g
length of time -oulstanding. The Ofrganization does not. charge Interest on
outstandlng accounts receivable. .

Property and Depreciation

Acguisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess.of $5,000 and all
expenditures. for repairs, mainténance, and betterments that materilly prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Bunldtngs equipment; and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is. provided .using the
$traight-line:method over:the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used sofely by an individual program is
'charged directly to. the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the prograi based upen a square: footage or
-other similar allocation:

Depreciation €xpense related to administrative assels is.included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to 'the programs in dccordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance -and repalrs that do not materiatly prolong the useful lives: of asssts.are
chargeéd to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives.are as follows!

Buildings and improvements , 20'to 40 yéars
Vehicles 5 to 8:5 years
Fuftilture-and equipment . 5to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Comerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on ‘an anhual basis by the
Départment of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
‘without such.approval. The clients are charged rent equal to -:30% of thelr income
less adjustments .allowed by the Departmenf of Housing and Urban Davelopment,
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housiig and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.
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Refundable Advances

‘Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as rgvehue i thé: period in which the related services or expendltures are
performied or incurred. Furids received in advance.of grantor cenditions being mef
aggregated $197,157 and $191 069 as of Juné 30, 2019 and2018..respectively.

Nonprofit tax. stat‘us

Ttie. Qrganization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization. in accordance
with. thie Intéfnal Revenue Code, It has been ¢lassified as-an: organization that is‘nol
a private-foundation under the Internal Revehue Code and qualifies for acharitable
contribution deduction for Individual donors. The: Orgamzahon files information
relums in the United States. The Orgamzatlons Fedaral Form 990 {Retim of
Organizdtion. Exémpt from Income Tax), 'is -subject to examination by (he IRS,
generally for three yéars.aftef it is fled. The Organization is no longer subjeci o
examination’s by tax authorities for years prior {6 2015.

The Organization follows FASB. ASC, A’ccounﬁng for* Uncertainty .in .Income. Taxes,
which clarifies the. accounting for uncertainty ‘in income taxes -and prescnbes a
recogtition threshold and measuremént attribute for-financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions takén or expetted 16 be taken in.a tax return,
The Organization does not believe they have: taken uncertadin tax. positions,
therefore; a liability for income taxes associaled with. uncertain tax positions has not

beeéri 'recbg'niz"e'd

'Due Io changes in ihe tax. Iaw in the 201 7 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act the Orgamzatlon
=for the y'eé"r ended June 30 2019 These expenses fall under the quallf ed taxabIe '
fnnge benefits. THe total tax due for the year ended June 30, 2018 is; approximately
$6,800.

Comerstone Housing North, [nc. is exempt from income taxes undér Section

01(c)(3) of the Infernal Revenue Code. The Intemal Revenue Service: his
deterrmned the Organizatiort to be other than a privafe foundation "within the
meanlng of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

Thie Organlzatlon maintaing' a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the: provisions: of
Section 403(b) of thé. Inteinal Revenue -Code: All employees are -eligible to
confribute to. the plan beginrilng on thé date they:-are employed. Each employee
may ‘elect salary’ reduction agreement contributiors in accordance with limils
allowed in the Intemal Revenue Code. Employer contibutions. -are at the
Organizatconsannual discretion, In.Janvary 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, thersfore as of June 30 2019 and 2018; there were no. discretionary
contributions: recorded. Fuither informatién can be obtained from the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements..
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Donated services and goods _

Contributions of donated services that creaté or énhance non-financial assets or
that require: specialized skills. and would typically need to be purchased :if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contiibuted noncash asséts are fecorded at fair value at thé date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions dre recorded
as net, :assets ‘with donor restrictions. (n the absence of such stlpulahons_
contributions of ‘noncash assets are recorded .as net assels without donor
restrictions. -

Donated property and equipment .

Donations of property and equipment.are recorded as s‘uppor{ at their estirmated fair
.value .at the. date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unléss the donor has restricted the donated asset to a :specific
purpose. ‘Assets donafed with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions: of cash that musl be used to acquire property :and equipment are
reported as.net-assets with denor restrictions. Abisent donor stipulations regarding
how long those- donafed: assets must be maintained, the. Organization reports
expiralions of donor restrictions when the ddnated or acquired assels are placed in
service, :as instructed by the donor. The Orgamzatlon reclassifies net.assets with
-donorrestrictions'to nel assets without donor restrictiofis at that time.

Promisés-to Give

Conditional promises to give are nol recognized in the. financial statements until the
conditions are subslanually met. Unconditionat promises to give that:are expected
to be, coliected within one year are- recorded at ‘the: :net reahzable value,
Unconditional promises to, give thal are expectad to be collected in more than one
year: are: recorded .at fair value, which is measured as the present value: of fheir
future cash flows. The discounts on those .arhounts are computed using risk-
adjusted ‘interest rates ‘applicable to the. years in which the promises -are. recgived.
Amortization -of the disgounts is included in contribution revenue. In the abserice of
donor stipulations to the contrary; promises with payments due in future periods: are
réstricted to Use after the due date: Promises that remain uncolfected more than
one year after their due dates are writtén off unless the: dondrs. indicate ‘that
payment is merely postponed When a restriction gxpires, net’ asséts, with donor
restrictions are; reclassified to net-assets without donor restrictions.

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, there. were promises to give that were absent of
donor stlpulat:ons but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets ‘with ‘donor restrictions in the amount of $231,161 and $212,207,
respectively.  This amount was Included in: grants: and -contracts. on the
Consolidated Statement of Activities.
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Use of estirhdtes

The. presentation ‘of financial statements in confoimity with ‘@ccounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires mandgement to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reparted amounts of assets and liabilities
and dlsctosures of corlingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounlts of revénue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordlngly, actual results: could. differ from thosé estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounling Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures, of Fair Value of
Finahcial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose. fat_r values of lts.
financial ‘instruments. The ‘carrying ‘amount of the Organization's financial
instruments. which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, ‘approximate fair value: because of the short- term malunty of those

instruments.

Functional allocation-of expenses

The costs- of providing the various .programs .and other activities- have beén
summarized on:a functional basis in the stalement of activities. Accordingly, centala
costs have been aliocated arriong the program services. and supporting activities
benefited.

Prodgram salarles and_related expenses are allocated to the various
programs: and suppomng services based on .actual or estimated time
employees spend on each fuaétion as reported on a timesheet.

Workers: Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each. employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees $pend on each funclion as.noted above.

Pald Leave is charged to.a leave podl-and is allocated toeach program as-a
percentage of total salaries..

Fringe Banefits are charged to- a Fringe Benefit Pool: These. expensas:
include employer payroll faxes, pénsibn experisés, héalth and dental
insurance .and unemployment compensation. The poo! is -allocated to each
program baséed upon a-percentage of salares.

Depreciation_expense is allocated to each prbgram based upon specific:
‘assets: used by tha program and is reported as depreciation expense on the,
statements of functional expenses.

Othei occupancy expenses are -applicable to assets: which are used by
multiple. programss. Buildings .are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a bujlding include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenénce, etc.. These costs are
féported as-space costs on the statements of funclional expenses.
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InSurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; bunldlng liability inslirance is allocated lo programs based on square
footage of the bmldmgs and.insurance for furniture -arid equipment-is. allocated
to programs using' the book basis of the insured assets.

The remalining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon-a percentage of program expenses.
The 'expenses include items such as administrative 'alaries, geriéral liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and otheér expensés which
cannot be-specifically identified and charged to .a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate. proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits :and other indirect.‘costs o ‘the. U.S. Depariment of Health and Human
Services. The proposal; effective forthe fiscal year beginning July 1,:2018, received
provusuonal gpproval-and is -effeclive, until amended, at a rate of 12.50%. Per the
agreement. with the U'S. Department -of Health and Human Services, the
Organizatron s final rate.for the yéar ended Juhe 30, 2018 was 11.45%.. The actual
rate for ‘the year ended June 30, 2018 was approximalely 10. 44%, which Is
allowable because it is léss:than the provisional rate.

Advértising policy

The Organization uses advertising to'irform the. community about the programs it
offers. and the availability-of services. Advertising is expensed as ircuried. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June: 30, 2019 and 2018 was $11.698 and
$18,618, reéspectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

Duringthe year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the- FASB Accounting Standards Updaie (ASU) No. 2015-03,
S:mphfymg the -Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs:" The ASU is fimited to
simplifying the presentahon of .debt issuance costs; and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt: issuance. costs 1§ not :afféctéd by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements, of-functional expenses.for both 2019 and 2018.

New-Accounting Pionouncemérit

On August 18, 2016, FASB-issued ASU 2016-14; Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958)
- Presentation of Financial' Statements of Not-for-Profit Entitiés.. The update
addresses the .complexity -and understandability of net asset classification,
deficiencies in irfarmation aboit liquidity and availability of resources, and. the lack
of consistency in the. type of information provided about expenses ang. investment
retum. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of thése statemenits
accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to.all perlods prasented.
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NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

NOTE 3.

The: following represents, the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2019
and 2018;

2018 2018
Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 1,400,750 $ 1,320,038
Accounts receivable: 1,274,083 1,156,657
Pledges receivable 231,161 212,207
Tolalfinancial assets 2,905,994 ___2.697,902
Less amounts not avaitable to be
used within one year. ‘
Net'assets with donor restrictions . 678,254 817,791
Less net assets with time restrictions to be. '
met in lessthana year {348 631) (540,643)
Ambounts not availablé within éne year 329,623 277,148

Financial assets available 1o meet general

expenditures overthe nexttwelve months.  § __2.976.371 $ 2420754

It- is the. Organizatlons goal to maintain financial. ‘assets to meet 60 days’ of
operating éxpenses which approximates $2,786,000 and $2.729,000 respectivaly,

at.June: 30, 2619 and 2018:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. ‘

Cash and cash equiivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit-with financial.
institutions, afd investiients with -original maturities of three months or less. At
year end- and throughout -the year, the Organization's cash balances. -were
deposited with mulfiple financial institutions. At June 30, 2019 arid 2018, the:
balanc¢és in interest and: nen-interest- beanng accounts were insuréd by the FDIC up
tc. $250 000. At Juné 30, 2019 and 2018, there was. approximately $1, 750,000 .and
$1,200,000, of depos:ts held i excess of the' FDIC limit, respectively. Management
believes the -Organizafion is not exposed to any significant credit. Aisk-on cash and

cash equivalents and considers this-a normal business risk.

Cash Restrictions ' .
The: Organization is requifed to maintdin-a deposit-account with a bank.as part of

the, loan :security. agreemeni disclosed. at Noté 7. It is required to. maintain a

balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal excapt-to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Departmeit of
Agriculture.
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NOTE 4.

Amouits withdrawn to .make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits unlil the maximum requiréd deposit balante is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2019 :and 2018 was '$20,010 and $19,980, respectiiely.
The. Organization has made all .of their scheduled ‘deposits for the years ended
Jurié 30,2019 and 2018. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the
Statemenits of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to. maintain a deposil account with another bank as
p‘)art of a bond issue (see bond payable in. Note' 7). The required balance |n the
30, 2019 and 2018 was $176,208 arid $176,570, respectwely and the: Orgamzatwn
was in ‘compliance with:this requirement. These. amounts are included in réstricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintairis a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the: Guardianship Services Program. The balancs in the account is réstricted for
use on behalf of these clients: and .an offsetting liability is reported on the finaricial
statements as other- current liabilities. The total cusrent liability related fo ‘this
restriction at June ‘30, 2019 and 2018 was $582,116 and $378,605, respectively.
Thése amounts are iricluded in othér liabilities on the Statements: of Financial
Position. The ‘total restricted cash within this account at Juné 30, 2019 and 2018
was $582,116 and $378,605, respeclwe!y and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

At June 30, 2019, the Orgérilzation had $45,198 in restricted cash relating to the
property ihat is held for-sale- at year end. Upon the 'sale of the propéity, it will be

_ donated to another.non- profit Organization.

I

Certain cash accounts related to -Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted: for
certain. usés in the Organlzatron under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housung and Urban. Development The total amount reétricted -at
June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $179,277:and $131 610 respectively. See Noté: 15.

INVENTORY-

In- 2019 and 2018, inventory included weéatherization .materials ‘which Fad been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent.cost. A physical
inventoty Is faken annually. Cost is determined. using the first-in, first-out- (FlFO)
method. Invéntory at June 30, 2019-and 2018, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $85,886 and $87,569, réspéctively.
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NOTE.S.

NOTE 6.

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Organization adopted the provisions of
the' FASB Accounting Standard ‘Update {ASU) 2015-11, Invenitory, (Topic 330):
Simplifying the Measurement of Invenfory, which Stm'p'lit' es the subsequént
measureément of inventory by requiring inventory o be measured at the lower of
cost or net realizablé value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of
inventory in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably prediétable cosls of
completion, disposal. and transportalion. The- Organization has evaluated ASU
2015-11 and ‘has determined that there is no malerial Impact to the financial
statements.

ACCRUED.EARNED TIME

Forthe years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018, employees, of the Organization weére.
el:glble to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2019 and
2018, the .Organization had accrued .a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $204,079 and $203,1.21,

" respectively.

PROPERTY _ - . o
Property‘consists of the following at.Jurie 30, 2019:
Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value,
Building $ 9,709,749  $:3,469,618 $ 6,240,131
Equipment 1,950,063 1,708,917 241,146
Constitction
inprogress 2,500 - 2;500
Land _ 423,840 - __-423.840

Property consists:of the following at June 30, 2018:

Capitalized Accumulated ~ Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value.
Building $10,003,944  § 3,448,411 $.6,555:533
Equipment 2,384,905 1,754,913 628,992.
Land 423,840 - 423,840

The Qrganization has use of computers- and equipfment which are the praperty of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book:
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included inthe. Orgariization's
property and equipment totals.
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NOTE 7.

Depreciatian expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$447,669 and $463,483, respectively.

The Orgdriization has properly- held for sale at June 30, 2018 -amounting to
$47,000, which is classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements. of financial position. The total loss on the write down to market value of
this property was $255,492.

LONG TERM DEBT

‘The long term debt of the Orgariization as of June 30, 2019 :and 2018 consisted of

the following:

Note payable wilh the USDA. requiring 360 monithly
installments of $1.664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business; assels. Final

TAstallment dué January 2027 $ 124867 $ 138,225

Nole payable. with a bank requiring 120 monthiy
installments of $3,033, including interest ‘at 4.69%

per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two

.commercial propérties. Final installment due April
2021. 328,896 346,131

Note payable with a bank requiing 60 monthly

installiments of '$459; including interest at 5% per

anniiii. This hote. was an unsécured line: of credit
that: was .converted to a tefm loan durlhg the -yéar

-ended June 30, 2016. Final installmiént due ‘April

2021, 9,618 14,500

Note payablé to a fit nancmg company requiring 72

monthly installments of $312, incliding, interest .at.

5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's )

vehicle.. Final instaliment due August2021. 7.642 10,874

Note. paydble to a finaficing company fequiring 72
monthly instailments of $313, including intérest at.
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final instaliment due July 2021. : 7,385 10,637

Note payable lo a fiiancing company requmng 80
morithly instaliments. of $143, including ‘interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organizalion's

-vehicle, Final instaliment due November 2020. 2,331 3,863
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Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly instaliments of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final instaliment due February 2023.

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, inchiding interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage -on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due in
March 2023.

Bond payablé with ‘a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's intemal cost. of funds ‘multiplied by
67% with an_indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commeércial real estate morigage on various
properties: .and assignments of rents at varidus
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the- Departrnent of Housing dnd Urban
Development, This capital-advance is- hot subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years; or in August 2047.

Camerstone’ Housing’ North, Inc. mertgagé payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance. Authority.
The mortgage is not subjecl to interest. or principal
:amortization, Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final paymentidug iiv August 2047,

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs
Unamortized deferred financing costs.

Totaklorig termi debt
Less current portion due within one year
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9,739 12,041
395,429 403,244
2634595 2719260
1,617,600 1,617,600
250,000 250,000
5,388,102 5,529,375
{11,818} (12,705)
5,376,284 5,516,670
{148,449) __ (142,733Y




NOTE 8.

The.schéduled matirities of long-térm debt as of June 30, 2019 were as foliows:

Years ending

June 30 Amount
2020 $ 148,449
2021 437,624
2022 423,156
2023 485,481
2024 118,295

Thereafter 4.075,097
§ 5388102

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve.account

with a bank for the first two .notes payable listed above.

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

During the yéar-ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system:and
copier under thé terms. of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 and March

2021, respectively. During the yéar ended-June 30, 2017, the Company leased-an
-additional copier under the terms of a capital lease; expiring in May 2021. The
.assets and liabilities: under the capital leases are recorded at: the lower of the

present. valiie of the minimum. lease payments or the fair value of the: assets. The

.assels are depreciated over their-estimated lives.

The. obligations :included in capital leases: at June 30, 2019 and 2018, consisted of

the.following:

Lease ‘payable, to a financing company with

monthly instaliments; of $208° for principal and

interest at 9.5% per arinum. The lease is secured

by the phione system and ‘will rature in November ) )

2020. $ 32017 .§ 5362

Lease payable to & financing company with
monthly instaliments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8:841% per annum. The lease is
sécured by a ‘copier and will mature in March
2021. . 2,261 3,467
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NOTE 9:

NCTE 10.

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal :and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease s

secured by a copier and will mature in May 2021. 2673 3.842
8,225 12,671
Less current portion {4,870) (4,445}

§ 3355 8. 8,226

The scheduled maturities: of capital lease. obhgahons as of June 30, 2019 were as
follows:

Years ending

Jurie 30 Amount
2020 $ 4'L8ff_0
2021 8355

$ 8.225

DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE
The Organization has dvailable a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution ‘which-is,_secured by real estate mortgages arid assigiments of |eases

and rents on wvarious ‘properties as disclosed in the line of credit’ agreement.

Borrowings under:the:ling bear interest 'at 5.00% per annum,. and totaled $316,000
at Juné 30,.2018. Thefe was fo balance outstanding at June 30,°2019. The line is

subject:fo. renewal each Januaty.

The. Organization was issued an unsecured revolving ling -6f ¢redit i '2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The' Organlzanon was rict
required to: make payménts of interest or principal prior to maturity. At June 30,
2018 the outstandlng -debt totaled $200 022 Wthh mcluded accrued mteresl of

ended June 30, _2019

OPERATING LEASES .

The Organization has entered into riumerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under ‘non-cancelable lease agreements, have. varidus .stirting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has:
several facilities which are leased on a.month to month basis. Forithe: years ended

June 30, 2019-and 2018, the annual rent expense for leased facilities totaled

$181,127 and $165,227, respectively.
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Future' minimum .lease’ payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms. in excess of one year as of June 30, 2019, are as follows:

Yedrs énding

June 30 Amodunt
2020 $ 147778
2021 65,003
2022 3:301

~ $_216.082

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS.
The Organization: records the, valué of in-kind contributions according to. the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, trafnsportation and elder
programs. rely heavily on volunteers wha donate their services to the Orgamzatnon
These -services are valued based upon the comparative market wage: ‘for similar
paid positions.

The Qrganization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form ¢f below
market rent for some- of the facililies utilized by the: Head ‘Start and elder programs.
The value of fhe in-kind rent i$ recorded at the difference between the: rental
payment aind the, hiarket raté for the property based upon a recént.appiaisal..

Many other individuals have donated significant amounts. of time to the activities of
the Organizatiori. The financial statements do not reflect .any: value for these
donated services since: thefé i§ no reliable basis for making a ‘reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. receives.a majority -of its, support, from
federal and state govemments For thé years ended June. 30, 2019 and 2018,
approximately $13,951,828 (77%) and $13,773,803 (75%) respectively, of thé
Organizetion's total revenue was received from federal and state governments: If:a
sighificant reduction in-the level'of support were to occur, it would have a significant
effect 6n the. Organlzahon § programs and activities.

Carnerstone Housing Naorth, Inc. raceives a large maijority of its support. from: the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2019 and 2018, approximately 69% of the Organizations total revenue: was
derived from. the U.S. Départriient of Housing and Urban Development. In the
absence of additional revehue sources, the future existéricer of Comerstone
Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the.U.S., Department
of Housing and Urban Development.
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The majority of Comerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are @partment projecls
forwhich operations are-concenirated in the elderly person’s real estate market. in
addition, the Orgariizatioh operatés in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are §ubject to change by an
act of Congress or an :adminisrative change- mandated by HUD. Such changés
may octur with litle netice of jnadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to coiply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assels with donor festrictions are available for the. following specific program

services as of June 30 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Tempdrary Muhicipal Funding $ 231,161 § 212,207

10 Bricks Shelter Funds 142,990 142,190

FAP 117,470 136,614

Restricted Buildings: 87,541 190,049

Support Center 25,939 -

Weatherization '25.000 .

Loans - HSGP 19,807 21,454

FAP/EAP 11,290 23,249

RSVP Program Funds : 7,056 5,021

Senior Meals 5,130 -

Head Start _ 3,999 4,172

Donations to Maple Fund 1,571 1,586

Homelgss Programs - 27.680:

USDA ' . 10,332
Loans- HHARLF - 6,967
{DN Capacity Fund. - 32,184
-Community Needs:Assessment. s . 4076
Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 678254 $ 817.791

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES.

Griant Compliance

The Organization recelves funds under several federal and state grants. Under the:
terms of the grants the' Organnzatlon is required te comply with various stipulations
including use .and time restrictions. If the Organuzal:on was found to be
noncompliant with the provns-ons of the grant agreéements, the. Organlzatlon -Could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

26




NOTE 15.

Environmental Conrrngencie

On March 30, 2009, the. Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure

ownership of a 1.2-acre sile located in Berlin, New Hampshlre There. are 2
buildings on this site designated as. the' East'Wing and West: Wing Buildings which

were: formerly used as a research and development facility for the. Berlin MI"S

Company

The. exterior soil and interior pafts of the East Wing Buiiding coritained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. in a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State -of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the. reimiedial actions. for. the exterior -soils. and parts .of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the. Depanmenl s salusfact:on

In addition, the Department noted. that the contaminants; relat_e,d to the. West Wing
Building did not pose an éxposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
enviroriment, provided thé West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration.. If further detéfioration. occurs and contaminants are.
released into the environment, the Organlzatron couid be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencles.

Dunng the year ended June 30, 2018, légal actions were Brought against the
Organization. Due to the uncenalnty of the outcome. of such cases as of June 30,

2019, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization’s potential iability, no amount.
Has been accrued by thé .Organization at thistime,

REPLACEMENT RSERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone Housmg Nonh Inc ] regulatory agreement’ with HUD.,. the

replacement of property and other pro;ect expendltures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits 0f'$129,407 and $106,548 were held in a.segiegatéd accoiint.at
June 30, 2019 and 2018; respectweiy HUD-restricted’ deposits generally -are: not
.available for operating purposes.

Comarstone Housing North Inc.'s'use of the residual receipts account is contlngent
upon HUD's prior written approval Residual receipts of $46, 514 arid $21,326 were
heid in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2019 ‘and 2018,

respectively.

HUWD has initiated policies to. recapture funds built up in residual receipts :accounts
upon. renewal of the Organization's ‘project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts, in excess:of certain limits:in the residual receipts: account.be

" {ayuseéd to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted

directly to HUD. The. pOlIC!eS generally. require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residuatl receipts account 165250 per unit.
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NOTE 16.

In accordance with the. policy noted above, subseglient to. year -end the
Organization was. required to remit funds to.HUD totaling $31,412. in addition to the
funds- remitted, HUD .approved the Orgamzahon to withdraw ‘$11,852 from the
residual receipts ‘account.for equipment.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are eveils or lransactions that occur after the.-statement -of
financial position date, but before finantial statements are available to be issued.

Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional

-evidence about conditions that existed at the statement .of financial position date,

including the -estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statemenits.

Nan-recoghized subsequent events are .events that provide -evidence. about
.conditions that did not exist at the stateniént of fi nancial position date, but arose

afterthat date. Management has evaluated. subsequent events: lhrough ‘October 21,
2019; the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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Leone,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PHDFB‘SIO\A.L ASSOCLLTION
CERTIFIED PUBLICATCOUNTANTS.
WO1FEBORO:«, NORTI-CONWA:
DOVER «'CONCORD
'STRATHAM.
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS! REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL.OVER; FINANCIAL
REPORTING'AND ON COMPLIANCE'AND OTHER MATTERS:BASED.ON.

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.PERFORMED
IN ACGORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING. STANDARDS'

To the Board of Directors of-
Ta- County Communlly Aclion Pragram, Inc.
‘Berlin, New Hamgshirg

‘We have: audlted in accordance. with the audltmg standards generally acceplad’in’thé Uniteéd States: of
Amenca and the' standards. appllcable 1o finanicia) audits: Coritained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by he Complrolter .General .of the: United States, the financial slatements of Tri- Coumy
Community Action: Program Inc. (a nonprofit: organization), which comprise the.statement of financial
position .as: of June. 30, ‘2019, and the- srelated: statemerits of activities; ‘functignal’ expenses and cash
flows: {or‘the -year | then ended and the: related: notes lto the: financial. statements, and have- lssued Gur
report thereOn dated Oclober 21,°201" 9.

In planmng and performmg our audil-of: the consolidaied financial 'statements, we considered Tri-Courity
Community Action Program | Inc.*s internal -controi over finangial reporting (lnternal control) to:-delermiine;
the audit: procedures 1hat ‘are- appropnale in the. circuimstaricgs foi the plrpdse: of expressmg our
opinion on the: consdlidated .fi riancial. ‘staterants; but not for'tfie purpose of expressmg an opinion .on
the ‘effecliveness: of: Tri:County Community Action Program Inc:’s internai oontrol Accordmgly' wa do
not express :an -opinion’ on: the: effecliveness: of Tri: County Community Action: Program Inc.'s. intéal,
control:

A defc:ency in: Internal ‘control exists ‘when the. design or -operalion of a conlrol does rist aliow
management or employees, in° the normal course. of performing their assigned functions::to prevent, or
defect and -correct, risstalements :on a limely basis. A materisl weakness is a defi iclency, or-a
:combination of, deﬁmencaes JIniinternal . control, $uch that’therd:is a.reasonable. pOSSlbllliy that.a material *
misstatement:of thaventity:s: i -ingficial Statemerits will not be. prevemed or detected and comected on a.
timely- basis.. A sigrificant: défic icigncy is -a-deficiency. or . combinalion of deficiencies, in internal control.
‘that is less severe-than a: matenal weakness yel impoitarit enough tg mérit @itgntich by thésé charged

‘with govermanice:

Our consideration of intefnat control was for the limited purpose described in the: first. paragraph of this:
'section: -and was' .not designed to- identify. all’ daficiencies in interpal conlrol fhat; might :be material
weaknesses-or significani: deficiencies: Given these |lmllaU0l'IS durlng :oUr audil we did riot identify-any
deficiencles in intemal contrdl. that wé consider to. be material weaknesses. Howevar,. matenal
weaknesses may-éxist:thal have.not been.identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part ¢f obtaining reasonable assuiance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.’s
financial statements are free ‘from: material misstatement, we: performed tests of lits. éompliance: with
cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, céntracts, and grant. agreements, noncompliance ‘with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of consolidaled financial statement
-amounls; However,- providing -an opinion on compliance with {hose provisions was. nol ‘an. objeclive. of
'our -audit, and accordingly, we. do.not express such an -opinion. The results of our- tests disclosed no
inslances of noncompliance or other matlers (hat are required to bé repoited under Government
Auditing Standards,

Purpase of this Report

The, purpose of this report is solely ‘to describe. the scope of ‘our leshng of internal control and
compliance and-the results of that testing, and nol to provide an opinion on the .ffectiveneass .of the
arganizaiion's internal control or on comripliance. This report is -an inlegral part-of-an audit performed in
accordance. with Goveérnment Auditing :Standards in considering the organization’s ‘internal ¢ontrol and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is-not suitable for:any olher purpose.

Begrs Morommast 4 Pobicts.

Octobes 21, 2019 .
Norlh Conway, New Hampshire

33




Leone
fcDonnell
& Roberts

PROYESSIONAL ASSOCLATHON
CRRTIFIEDPUBLIC ACCOURTATS:
/WOLFEBORQ + NORTH-CORRY

DOVER CO\CORD
STRAM\S

INDEPENDENT :AUDITGRS' REPORT.ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR; PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
C_J ER COMPLIANCEIREQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM:-GUIDANCE

"To the Board of Directors of
Tri- County Cornmunlly Aclion Program, lic.
Berdin, New Hampshira

‘Report on Compllance for Each Major Federal Program :

We haveaudited Tn-County Commumty ‘Action Program Inc.’s:compliance with the‘types:of compliance
requireménis. described in the, OM8B: Comphance Supp!ement thal could have a direct .and material
gffect on each: of Tri- -County Gommuniity.. Achon Program Incis major fedgral programs, for the ‘year
ended June. 30, 2019, Tri-Counly Commumly Action Program incl's major fedérdl programs- -are
identified. in the “summary: of auditors! results seclion of the accompanying schedule of*findings -and
questioned costs..

Managementis:Responsibility
Management: s *responsible for compliance withthe requiréments of laws, regulations, .contracls, :and

grants: apphcable to its federal. .programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility.

Qiir responsibility.‘is: to express an opinion .on ‘comgliance *for éach of Tri-County Community Action
Program Inc:'s ‘major federal. programs: based an our dudit of the types .of compliance requiremenis
referred 1o above. Wé conducted «Gur audit -of compliance. in‘accordance ‘with :auditing stendards,
=generally :accapted I the. United States of America; the istandards apphcable 1o finaficlal audits:
contairied i Govérnmen{ Auditing Standards,. lssued by:the Complrolier Gerieral of the.Uniled Stéles:.
.and - the. audit- requiremenits of Title. 2 U. S. iCode of Federsl Regulations Part. 200, Uhiform,
Administrative -Requirements, Cost Prrncrp!es and’ Audit. Requ:remenfs for Faderal Awards (Unlform-
-Guidance). Those :standards and. Uriiform ‘Guidance require that. we plan and perform the' audit fo.
oblain teasonable dssurance about whether. noncomphance with the rypes of compllance requirémants.
referred to:above that could have:a dlrecl and maleridl effect on a'miajor. federal prégram dccurred. An
audit includes examining, on a.test basis, evidence.about Tri- County Communily. Action’ Program In¢.’s
complaance with those- requirements .and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the.circumstances.

‘Wé: believe that our audit provides- a reasonabie: basis for:our oplnlon on compliance fof éach major

federal program. However, oirr*audit does: rist provide.a legal determmalion of Tri-County Commumty
Aciion Program Inc.'s-compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Tri-County Community Aclion Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects, ‘withthe
types of compliance. requiréments referred 1o above thal could have a direct and material effect:on.each
of its major federal programs for the year .ended June 30, 2019.

Report on'Internal Control over Compliance’

Management of Tri-Coufity Community Action Program, Inc. is: responsible for eslablishing and
maintaining effective. internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
selerred to above. In planning and perfdfming our audit of compliance, we considered Tr-County
-Cofmmiunity Action Program Inc.’s internal control over compliance- with, the types of requiréments thal
could have & direct end malerial effect on @ach major fédérdl progiam to delérmine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpase of expressing an opinion on
compliance-for each major federal program and 10 test and report oninteral control over complience In
accordance with Uniform Guidance, bul not for thé pumese of expressing -an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do nol expréss an opinion on the.
eflectiveness of Tri:=County Community Action Program, Inc.'s intérmal control over ‘compliance.

A deliciency in internal conlrol .over compliance exists when the, design .or operation of a control over
compliance does mol allow mianagement, of employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with :a type of complianée
réquirement of a federal program on a limsly basis. A material weakness in internal contro! over
compliance is a deficiency, or combinatiorn of deficiencies, in internal conirol over compliance, such that
there is 'a réasonable possibilily that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will ‘nol be prevented, or detected and coffécted, -on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in .internal control ovér compliance is a deficiency, or a combinalion of deficiencies, it
Intéfnal control-over-compliance with.a type of compliance requiremant of a federal program thaliis less
severe than -a ‘material weakness i ifleriial. control ovér compliance, yel important enough to meril’
-attentior by those charged wilh governance.

Qur consideration of intérnal control over: complignce was for-the limited purpose described in the.first
paragraph of this::seclion and was no! ‘designed lo identify &ll deficiencdies in’ intemal control over
compliance that might be malerial weaknesses. or significant deficiencies. We: did not Identify any
deficiencies in inleimal .contrdl over.compliance ,l,h,a't_ wa-_t;onside'r to be material weakhesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been idgantified.

The. purpose .of this report on infermal control over compliance is solely to describe the. scope of our

testing ‘of internal control over conipliance aind the results of that tesfing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance: Accordingly, this.réport is not-suilable far .any other-purpose.

October-21, 2019 .
North Conway, Naw Hampshire
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8
9.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR'ENDED JUNE 30,2019

. The auditors’ réport expresses-an unmodified opinion on lhe financial statements of Tri-County

Community Action Program, Inc.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audil of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors’ Repoft-on Internal Control over Financial Reporting ‘and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Stateméits Performéd .in Accordance: with
Government Auditing Stendards.

No instances of noncompliarice malerial lo the finandal statements of Tr-County Comimunity
Action Prograim,. In¢. which would be required to be reported in ‘accorddnce ‘wilh Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during thd audit.

No significant deficiencies in internal ¢ontrol over major federal:award programs during the audit
are reporied in lhe Indépendent Auditors’ Report on -Compliance: for Each Major Program and

.on Internal Control over Gompliance in Accordarice with the Uniform Guidance,

The auditors’ report on compliance for the. major ‘federal ‘award programs for Tri-Cou'nty

Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

No -audit findings that :are required to be reported in accordance wilki 2 CFR 200.516(a) are.
reported in this Schedule.

The programs lesled as major programs included:
U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP — CFDA #93:568
U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, Head Start - CFDA#93.600

U.S. Dept. of Energy, Weatherization Assistance for Low Income Iindividuals — CFDA
#81.042

Thé threshold for distinguishing Type A and B.programs: was: $750,000

Tri-County Community Aclion Program, inc. was determined to. be' a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS -.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS.- MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None.
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Board of Directors
FY2021
Coos County Carroll County , Grafton County
Board Chair ‘Vice Chair Linda Massimilla
Sandy Alonzo Anne Barber

Tricia Garrison

Michael Dewar

Richard Mcleod

Karolina Brzozowska



Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Key Personnel
Nutrition and Transportation
FY2021
Name Job Title Salary 9% Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract.

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $120,000 0% 0
Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer $80,080 0% 0
Regan Pride Chief Operating Officer $72,860 0% Q
Kristy Letendre Chief Program Qfficer $70,000 0% 0
Brenda Gagne Economic Supports $60,000 0% 0

Department Head
Sarah Wight Fuel Assistance Program $48,000 50% $24,000

Director




Jeanne L. Robillard

CORE STRENGYHS

Program development, management and administration ¢ Community collaborations
Devclopment of policy, prowcol, and service delivery 1o meet funder standards
Grant writing and management * Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovative soludons & problem solving ¢ Capacity building
Professional presentadons 4  Public speaking
Dedication *+ Inmginaton ¢ Determinaton ¢ TFortitude

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc.
Chief Excentive (licer
Berlin, NH 201718 - carrent FI emploggment

Tri-Connty Community Action Programs, Inc.

Chiet Opcrating Officer

Berlin, NH 2016 - 2018

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions wath 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northem New Hampshire. Essental dutics includc;
supervision of Division Ditectors, oversec and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategies to improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Asscssment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
scrvice initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri-County Commuonity Action Programs, Ine.

Division Dircetor: TCCAFP Prevention Services

Berlin, NI 2013- 2016

Responsible for four agency programs under the umbreila of TCCAP Preventon Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined suategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for funders
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service delivery;
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri-County Community Action Programs, Ine.

Program/Division Director: Support Center at Burch Hoase

Littleton, New Hompshire 2007-2013

Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis ceater and residendal
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financtal
statements for funders and parent agency; oversce program resources, revenucs and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy
programs to cnsure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
fundraising and marketing strategies; participate in state angd local collaborations to enhance vicdm
services; represent program in state and federal victim service initiadgves, including presentation of
legislative testimony; cteate and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.



JL Robillard * 2
Bookkeeper: Women’s Horal Entreprenenrial Network {(WHEN)
Bethichem, NH current PT employment
Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds relcase and account transfers, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locations, prepating monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Ditectots.

Tri-Counily Community Action Programs, Ine.

Direet Scrvices/Voluntecr Coordinator: Suppori Center at Barch House

Littleton, New Hampshire 1897 to 2007

Provide advocacy and ditect setvice to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach presentatons and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: Haverhill Area Juvenile Diversion Program

Woodsville, New Hampshire 1989-2001

Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relatonships between the court
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
coutt reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Connselor/Tifle I Teacher: Northern Family Institute-Jelferson Shelier

Jeficrson, New Hampshire  1996-1998

Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Education

BS in Human Services, Springfield College School of Human Services, Boston, MA
Criminal Justice Concentration, Gradwated with 4.0 GPA

AS in Drug and Aleohol Rechabiliintion Counseling (DARC Program)
Southern Conneceticnt Community College, New Haven, CT

Addition

Chairman, Bethlchem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem  Twice Elected 2006-2070
Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Treasurer 1996-1998
Chairman, Haverhill Area Family Violence Coundl  1998-2003

Cerdfied PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199
Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire

Board Member, Women's Rural Enttepreneurial Network 2074, Individuo! Member 2008-2017
Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 2075

Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - curvent

Granite United Way, Notth Country Cabinet Member  20711-2012

TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2077

Bethlehem Citizen's Advisory Committee on Recyeling  2007-2070

Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH  2000-2006

Small Business Owner : Aurora Energies 2075- enrrent

Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/ Sweet Jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997- current

Member, United States Figure Skating Association/Internatonal Skating Instivate  awrrent sinee 1993
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__RANDALL S .. PILOTT}:
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SUMMARY

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of expeticnce managing accounting professionals. Key competencies include:

Financial Statements Accounts Peyables Inventory Fixed Assets
Payroll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables Sales/Use Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting

EXPERIENCE

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC,, Berlin, NH 06/2013-Present

CFO (2017 — Present)
Work closely with the CEQ, Treasurer and Finance Committec to identify performance goals for the Agency and to
maintain systems to tmonitor performance against those gozls. Plan, direct, coordinatc, implement and evaluate the
financial management systems and activities of the Agency with a budget of $18M.
»  Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting rccords for the Agency and outside
regulatory agencies.
'« As a member of the scrior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finance
. policies, objectives and programs.
‘e Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,
coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performance reviews of Tri-County CAPs divisions.
e Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee performance within the department; recommend promotions and salary
adjustments.
« Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases and
covenants are maintained for Tri-County CAP’s facilities. Creation of five-year capital plan.
s Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitorinvestments associated
with each propcrty. /
s Prepared five-ycar debt reduction plan.

Fiscal Director/Interim CFO (20162017}

» Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets.

e Prepare and supervise the production of financial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.

+ Mamtain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to cnsure accurate revenue reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic monitoring’s by funders and auditors.

o Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts are analyzed and reconciled periodically.

¢ Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget.

e Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing
departmental goals.

s Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.

¢ Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager {2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:



KENT NUTRITION GROUP, INC. (f/k/a Blue Seal Feeds, Inc.), Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/2010
Assistant Controller (2005-201 0)

» Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of & consolidated and
individual financial statement in accordance with GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entrics, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

'+ Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory

" reconciliation, tonnage tax retums, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

» Oversaw all aspects of proprictary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal

and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-cnd returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of

payroll clerk.

Interfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid -Atlantic area used as depositories.

Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point of contact for audits.

Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.

Oversaw month-end accruals.

Agsisted and responded to auditors’ requests on annual audit.

Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

‘e, 8 e B8 e

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller’s initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor’s invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.
Accountent/Payroll Supervisor {1994-1599)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM, INC., Concord, NH 05/1987-03/1989
Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)
EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, FRANKLIN PIERCE COLLEGE, Concord, NH



REGAN L. PRIDE

SUMMARY

My experience spans the {ields of engineering, compuier techoology, education, and public adminjstration,
This unique combination brings a wide array of knowledge and skills o the table for your organization. I am a
team player, a patient traioer, and adept at interpersonal relations.

REVELANT KNOWLEDGE AND SKILL AREAS

+ Confidence in public speaking for business and technical applications, and instructional settings
»_Strong writing skills and interpersonsl communication skills, ability to teach others, and build consensus
= Approachable, warm and personable style in teaching classes and interacting with colleagues
o Robust education in mathemelics, engineering and genera) science topics
» Fluency with entire Microsoft Office application suite.
"_-":F luency with AutoCAD computer-zided drafting software
Ha:Familiarity with ArcView GIS software.
» Familiar with Avante Enterprise Resource Planning soflware
» Familiar with BMSI fund eccounting end Avitar essessing/tex billing sofiware
* Adept at Macromedia/Adobe Dreamweaver MX web site design software

WORK EXPERIENCE

NORTH COUNTRY COUNCIL REGIONAL PLANNING COMISSION, Littlcton, NH

TITLE: Planner, 2012-2013 + 2015-201%

Managed solid waste technical assistance program funded by USDA Rural Development. Conducted “Fufl Cost
Accounting” studies of municipal solid waste department operations. Reviewed and updated operating plans for
municipal solid waste facilities. Organized houschold hazardous waste collection events, Created and delivered
training programs for solid waste operator certification.. Created pilot programs to reduce & divert food waste
from landfills in 4 communities.

2013-2014

INNOVATIVE STRUCTURAL BUILDING PRODUCTS

TITLE: Project Manager

Performed a variety of functions including business plan preparation and product development associated with a
start-up company in the engineered wood sheathing industry. 1 created engineering drawings, built and tested
prototypes, and assisted in marketing activities.

2000 — Present
ICANTOO ENTERPRISES, Lisbon, NH
TITLE: Owner, Computer Applications Consulting
Assistance and training with business and technical applications. Created cusiomized solutions invoiving
AutoCAD, MS Work, M5 Excel, MS Access software applications. [ also perform web site HTML and CGl
development, hardware setup, upgrades, end troubleshooting.
Recent clients/projects include:
*  New England Electric Wire Corp — Implementation of Avante MRP & APS scheduling software,
computerized WIP labeling system, computer worksiation installations, user/operator training.
* Littleton, NH Senior Softball League — custom programming and support of statistice] software
»  Lopuisiana Corporate Credit Union — Web site design and maintenance.
*  Brammer Creek — Web site design for wholesale food distributor,



2006 - 2012

TOWN OF LISBON, NH, Lisbon, NH

TITLE: Town Administrator, CPM

Prepared annual town budgets and performed prescntations at budget hearings and town meeting. Prepared
ennual finencial reports (MS-2, MS-4, MS-6) for the town. Generated tax warrants, and water/sewer warrants.
Analyzed water/sewer revenues and developed rate structure to balanice department's budget. Performed the
functions of financial sdministration, personnel management, grant administration, wel!fare administration,
emergency management, and project management.

1990-2000 & 2004 - 2006

NEW ENGLAND CATHETER CORPORATION, Lisbon, NH

(Subsidiary of New England Wire Technologies)

TITLE: Engineer, Medical Products

Performed process engineering support in the manufacture of wire-reinforced medical tubing including;
equipment specification, process/procedure development, tooling design, and statistical data analysis.
Developed customized spreadsheets for product design, and manufecturing process control.

{ was also employed with the parent company as an engineer/CAD operator from 1990 to 2000. While in this
capacity, [ led personal compuler users groups, installed the first Ethemet network in the company engineering
depanment, and developed computer file management sysiems and backup routines.

2002 - 2004

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT 35, Littleton, NH

TITLE: Distence Learning Coordinator

This position involved callaboration with teachers and s1aff to develop imteractive educational programs
utilizing distance learning/videoconferencing technology. Programs were distributed between thres high school
campuscs. Duties included setup, configuration, operation and meintenance of videoconferencing endpoints, and
operation of bridge/gateway at central office. | served as webmaster for SAU website. | also performed various
computcr suppon duties,

EDUCATION/CERTIFICATIONS

NI Bureav of Education and Training
CPM Certificate (Certified Pubic Manager)

University of Califarnia at Berkeley, Enginecring Department
92 semester credits in Mechanieal Engineering Major

CONTINUTING EDUCATION
¢ NH Cenified Public Supervisor program
¢ Radvision H.232 technician course
»  Six Sigma process control course by Boston Sciemific Corp.
»  Extrusion Theory course at University of Massachuseitsy, Lowell

PROFESSIONAL & CIVIC ASSOCIATIONS

* Board of Directors, North Country Council Regional Planning Commission,

Bethichem, NH; 2007-2012. Served as chairmen in 2011,

Graflon-Coos Regional Coordingring Council (for public transit); Linleton, NH: 2009-2012
Member of NHMMA, NHGFOA, NHLWAA - 2006-2012

Board of Seleciman, Lisbon, NH March 2000-2006. Served as chairman from 2002 1o 2006,
Board of Directors, Lisbon Main Street, Inc,, Lisbon, NH; 2008-2012; .
Econamic Restructuring Committee of Lisbon Main Street, inc., 2002-present

Member of Granite State Distance Learning Network, 2002.2004

REFERENCES
Professional references shall be produced upon request and presented at time of intervicw.



Kristy
Letendre

“Ifhuman beings are perceived as potentials rather than
problems, as possessing strengthsinstead of weaknesses, as
unlimited rathcrthan dull andunrespons:ve,thentheythnve
andgrow totheircapabilities.”

~Barbara Bush

W Expericnce
July 2020-Present
Chief Programs Officer * TCCAP, Inc

e _ _ Responsible to provide leadership, supervision, oversight, and management of
; o= the agency’s programs and services directly or through a program director or
manager as well as works with the Chief Executive Officer to develop future
business for the agency. Responsible to ensure that all programs and services
comply with national program standards and state / federal governing laws and
. requirements.

i May 2019-Present

Division Director = TCCAP, Inc- Prevention

Responsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight'to the 'developme'rit _
design, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency of the programs B
and facilities under Prevention Services which include Guardianship Services;
Homeless Programs, including Tyler Blain Homeless Shelter, and Advocacy
and Support Services for Victims of Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault,
including Emergency Shelter Services at the Support Center at Burch House

Sept 2018—Present
Division Operations Coordinator = TCCAP, Inc- Prevention

Responsible for monitoring compliance of grant deliverables and legal / ethical
integrity of programs and services offered throughout the Division. Responsible
to compile and analyze division data; reporting trends and outcomes to Sr.
management and local stakeholders. Responsible to develop, review, and
update program written policy, procedures, and work flows. Responsible for
program development and oversight.

May2017-August 2018

of a comprehensive plan aimed to ,cfeilE m‘obu‘i @Efﬁih@,andw
......,..::....A..Iz f“-..-.:.......!). - B rﬂ-({);_; gj]i,j:]m} ﬁ;{umw,w %m



April 2014-May 2017
Division Director = TCCAP, Inc- Clinical Services

-Fl'.lcn'd'i]'lfp- I"[().l._lsb ke \1_\ esponsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to the development,
PllUiLLl ' B \ gn,dallyoperatlon compliance, and financial solvency of the programs and

; : ik ties under Clinical Services including the Division of Alcohol and other
@_TL!\'; Services, Friendship House; the region’s 32- bed Residential Treatment

and the Tamworth Dental Center Practice.

Mayfag4-April 2014
PAsSdciate Division Director *TCCAP, Inc- Division of Alcohol and Drugs

I1fgonjunction with the Division Director, responsible to provide joint Sr.
[#cddership and oversight to the development, design, daily operation,
cotnpliance, and financial solvency of the programs and facilities under the

. S S5 vision of Alcohol and other Drug Services, including Friendship House, the
2078 - 2018 . 7 region’s 32- bed Residential Treatment facility, the out-patient SUD treatment
oo L Y practice with 6 satellite sites throughout the 3 counties in the North Country and
the Impaired Driver Care Management Program.

Accomplishments

Friendship House New Construction-Bethlehem, NH-$5.2 MIL - 2015-2018
17,588-sq ft, 32-Bed Residential Substance Use Disorder Treatment Facility

e Submission of state and federal grant applications resulting in $2.7 MIL in
awards & executed a grass roots advocacy campaign securing the remaining $2.5
MIL in anonymous donations

o Issued all final project approvais on the design, project development,’
construction, submission of permit applications and town zoning requirements,
and licensure and compliance standards.

Implemented New Reimbursement System, 2015

+  Eliminated the Division’s dependence on grant funding by successfully procuring
contracts and credentialing with NH Medicaid, MCO’s, and Commercial
insurance companiescreating eligibility to submit claims on a fee-for-service basis
stabilizing revenue and enhancing rates for service.

»  Successfully negotiated a contract amendment with DHHS to expand billable
services to include Qutpatient and Intensive Outpatient services resulting in an
increase to from $1.8 MIL to $2.5MIL

Expert Panelist - Guidance Document on Best Practices: Community-Based
MAT for Opioid Use Disorders in New Hampshire, First Edition, 2016

.f_.’ ""\

Civic Involvement

f

2019 - Present MWV Supports Recovery Uﬂi}]‘g? Mlajﬂgm? )
2017 —Present  North Country Serenity CepfeigR®DI ﬂ" -;
2016 - Present Stand-Up Androscoggin V
2016—-2018 Project Aware, BHS, Ad
2017 - Present  Littleton ATOD Coaliti ni,r-

‘ 2018 — Present  Lancaster Area Coalm_o _
2016-2017  NCHC Board of Ditectcry



Good sense of humor | Excellent written and
oral communication
- skills
¥Qaging Community | Cultural intelligence Well- informed in
" _policy and procedure
i development '
] : ent in Office Versatile and Proficient in budget
: adaptable development and
management
tion focused Computer and Lateral thinking and
‘pblem resolution technology adept logical reasoning
ique leadership Knowledgeable grant | Innovative
ough empowerment | writer
B Y Detail oriented Creative strategic Experienced non-
) planner profit management
Excellent Community | Advocacy Approachable,
and political relations relatable, and relevant

Education

Plymouth State University, Plymouth NH.

2017-In Progress:IBusiness Administration

Coursework: accounting, economics, finance, management, marketing theories

and practices of business ethics and social responsibility, quantitative skills to
analyze.

White Mountains Community College, Berlin NH.

2015-2017 I'Busmess Administration

Coursework: management, accounting, finance, strategy, economlcs stansttcs
marketing, operations/project management, entrepreneurshlp, and, computer o
applications. Completed requirements of the- first two years of a four year )
business administration degree, AS-equivalent, 4.0 GPA - . B .
White Mountains Community College, Berlin NH : -
201 II[Leadershlp North Country '
Coursework: The program selects a diverse group aspiring leaders in northern
New Hampshire through a competitive nomination and application process.
Candidates participate in a 9-month program focused on education, arts and
culture, leadership and civil engagement, travel and tourism, and government
and politics.

1.

References
Available upon request
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Brenda Gagne
Tri County Community Action Program Iac.

Professional Skiils:

Demonstrated administrative experience and skills

Fiscal management skills or experience in administering grants and/or department budgets

Strong grant development experience, high quality research, for federal, state funding

Excellent interpersonal skills with an ability to build and meintain among faculty and staff

Previous administrative experience or evidence of administrative skills required to lead a large department
Leadership skills and experience to implement policies and procedures

Effective communication skills and teamn building capabilities

Tri County Community Action l;rogram
Economic Supports Department Head
6/2020 to Present

Manage a department of 4 Program Directors and staff

Advise programs on funding opportunities to include Federal, State and Local
Represent Agency at State and Local levels.

Monitor Program Budgets and Operations

Handle staff complaints when merited

Tri County Transit
Director of Transportation
5/2017 - 6/2020

Responsibilities include;
Oversight of the operations, maintenance and administrative functions of a social service transportation program

serving Coos, Northemn Grafton and Carroll Counties.

Grant Management State of NH DOT, NH DHHS
Drug & Alcohol Management

Financial Management

Title VI, ADA Policy Management



Tri County Transit
Operations Manager
7/2004-5/2017

Responsibilities include;

*Running the daily operations of a public transit and para transit service.
*Facility Management.

*Qathering statistics

*Quarterly reporting to NHDOT and BEAS.
*Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDOT
*Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
*Creating procedure manuals

*Grant writing

*Budget preparation

*Writing Warrant Articles

*Drug & Alcohol Testing

*Emergency Preparedness

Mountain Village Construction
Acconnts Manager/Office Manager
5/199S - 1/2004

Responstiblilities included;

*Customer service.

* Accounting using Quick Books Pro.

*Preparing payroll and Tex Payments.

*Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices.
*Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable.
*Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.

*Data Eptry.

*Phone communications and general secretarial duties.

Milan Parks and Recreation Dept.
Parks and Recreation Director
6/1997 - 3/2002

Responsibilities included;

*Directed and implemented sports and recreational programs for youth and adults for the
Towns of Milan, West Milan, and Dummer.

*Development of new programs and year round activities.

*Producing yearly budgets.

*Applying for Federal and State Grants.



Education:

Granite State College
Emergency Management

Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Business Administration



Sarsh Wight

Education NH Communlty Technical College, Berlin NH May 2005
Associates Degree in Accounting
Emplayment
Tri County Community Action
Energy Assistance Services Manager February 2014 to Present

*Supervise the process of the Fuel and Electrical Application including reviewing intake process, certification
production and incomplete applications.

*Supervise staff in the FAP Admin office and three Community Contact Offices

*Hire new employees and follow proper channels to let go of an employee

*Follow all guidelines and procedures given by the Federal Government

*Submit weekly FAP reimbursement reporls

*Handle frequent calls from staff, vendor or clients

“*process refund checks
*Centify when needed
*Enter vendor Involces into FAP/EAP system when needed
Certifler July 2012-February 2014
*Certify applications submitted to the agency October 2G11-January 2012
for Fuel and Electric assistance August 2010-April 2011

*Follow strict guidelines to process each application

*Request missing Information from the ouvtreach office or applicant

*Keep in tonstant contact with outreach offices regarding outstanding applications

*Speak with apphicants who have questions about the program or thelr applicaticn

*Speak with other agencies and fuel vendors about submitted information and henefits
awarded to the appilicant

*Refer applicants to other agencies that may be abie to assist them

Androscoggin Valley Hospital August 2009 ~ August 2010
Front Desk/Data Entry

*Answer telephane calls from patients and employees

*Enter daily charges and payments

*Daily Interaction with patients who have questions about their bilt

*Refer patients to Credit Department for payment arrangements and sliding fee

*Keep updated spreadsheets for MCR and MCD payments

*Gather all needed information to process refunds to Insurance companies or patients

Account Specialist March 2006 - February 2008
*Speak dally with insurance companies about outstanding claims

*VerHy denial reasons

*Compare payments recelved from the insurance company with patiants claim

*Process appeals on dented clalms

*Confirm electranic claims

Secretary August 2005 - March 2006

*Assist patients with regisiration process
*+perform various clerical duties to ensure efficient aperation of the office

Medicat/Surgical Unit Coordinator ' July 2005 - March 2006
*Enter physician’s orders Into the computer

‘Answer phone

*Assist visitors with any quesilons they may have

P & i Auto March 2005 — May 3005



Bookkeeper/Accountant: Student Internship

*Prepare invoices for payroll

*Use QuickBooks to keep track of bills owed and pay bills
*Reconcile bank statements

Wal-Mart

Accounting Office Clerk

*Respansible for maintaining an exact cash balance within the office
*Prepare and verify daily deposits

*Verily and research overages and shortages

*Validate layaway balances

*Collect on returned checks

*Perform cash fund transfers

July 2000 = August 2004



